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VI.

VII.
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XI.

XII.
XIII.
XIV.
XV.
XVI.

XVIL.

CONSOLIDATED QUARTERLY REPORT

Fixed assets

Current assets

Noncurrent assets classified as held for sale
Total assets

Equity

Equity attributable to shareholders of the parent

Minority interest
Longerm liabilities
Shorterm liabilities

Liabilities arising fromcument assets classified as held for

Book value of equity attributable to shareholders of the pa
share (PLN/EUR)

Sales revenue

Gross profit on sales

Net profit/(loss)

Net profit /(loss) attributable to shareholders of the parent
Net profit /(lossfributable to minority interest

Basic profit/(loss) per share (in PLN/EUR) attributable to €
holders of the parent

PLNG6OOO
30 September 31December
2022 2021
609,51: 525,45(
2,391,93: 2,155,86(
217,31« 568,53(
3,218,76. 3,249,84(
1,256,92! 1,400,40¢
1,256,92! 1,400,40¢
533,19: 574,47¢
1,414,36 1,260,67.
14,272 14,28¢
2.81 3.13
Period of 9 Period of 9
months ended months ended
30 September 30 September
2022 2021
320,29 596,33z
83,45¢ 163,36/
50,511 84,772
50,511 84,772
0.11 0.19

DEVELIA

WCZESNIEJ LC CORP

QR for 3Q 2022

EURGO0OO0O
30 September 31 December
2022 2021
125,162 114,24:
491,177 468,72¢
44,625 123,61(
660,96 706,57¢
258,107 304,47¢
258,107 304,47¢
109,49( 124,90z
290,43¢ 274,09¢
2,931 3,105
0.58 0.68
Period of 9 Period of 9
months ended months ended
30 September 30 September
2022 2021
68,322 130,81¢
17,802 35,837
10,775 18,59¢
10,775 18,59¢€
0.02 0.04



Develia S.A. Group QR for 3Q 2022
CONSOLIDATED QUARTERLY REPORT

PLNGOOO EURGO0O0DO
30 September 31 December 30 September 31 December

2022 2021 2022 2021
XVIII. Total assets 2,584,31t 2,373,27! 530,68t 515,99i
XIX. Equity 1,096,48- 1,129,60! 225,16( 245,59¢

Period of 9 Period of 9 Period of 9 Period of 9
months ended months ended months ended months ended
30 September 30 September 30 September 30 September

2022 2021 2022 2021

XX.  Net profit(loss) 161,96¢ 120,141 34,54¢ 26,35t

Selected financial data was converted to EUR acc. to the following principles:

a) financial data concerning selected items of assets and liabilities was calculated using the average EUR/PLN exch:
guoted by the National Bank of Poland and effective as at-#iredabatee As at 30 September 2022, it stood at
EUR/PLM.8698and at the balarsieeet date of 31 December 2021 at EUFEFAMN

b) financial data concerning selected items of the statement of comprehensive income for the three quarters of 2022
three quarters of 2021 was calculated using the EUR/PLN isaten vehithmetic mean of average exchange rates
quoted by the National Bank of Poland and effective on the last day of each month in the accounting peri
EUR/PLM.6880 and EUR/PAKN585 respectively.
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If not stated otherwise, the below figures are presented in PLN '000.

Assets

Ol N kNP PN RONER P>

Fixed assets

Intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment
Noncurrent receivables

Investments in joint ventures valued by equity method
Investment property

Nonrcurrent prepayments

Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Inventory

Trade and other receivables

Income tax receivables

Derivatives assets

Shorterm securities

Other financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Current prepayments

Noncurrent assets classified as hédd sale

Total assets

Equity and liabilities

NookkwNdEOOOOAONRED:

w NP

D.

Equity

Equity attributable to shareholders of the parent
Share capital

Other capitals

Net profit/(loss)

Minority interest

Longterm liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities on account of loans and bonds
Noncurrent liabilitiegsing from derivatives
Noncurrent lease liabilities

Provisions

Accruals and deferred income

Deferred tax liability

Shortterm liabilities

Current liabilities on account of loans and bonds
Current liabilities arising from derivatives
Current lease liabilities

Current trade and other payables

Income tax payables

Provisions

Accruals and deferred income

Liabilities arising from nesurrent assets classified as held for sale

Total equity and liabilities

DEVELIA

WCZESNIEJ LC CORP

Note

2.13
2.14

2.18

2.15
2.16

2.30.2
221
2.21
221

2.14

2.30.1

2.30.2

2.30.6
2.17

2.18

2.30.1
2.30.2
2.30.6
2.30.7

2.17
2.30.8

30 September
2022

609,51
527
4,833
2,727
85,502
487,90C
513
27,51C
2,391,93:
1,948,82!
23,491
4,117
909
25,24C
120,107
263,62
5,616
217,31¢
3,218,76:

1,256,92!
1,256,92!
447 ,55¢
758,86(
50,511
533,192
451,42~
17,874
14,11¢
3,806
45,96¢
1,414,36°
163,30¢
76,732
190,957
1,189
8,924
973,251

14,272

3,218,76:

QR for 3Q 2022

31 December
2021

525,45(
433
5,098
2,576
55,122
451,66(
509
10,052
2,155,86(
1,569,63.
97,28¢€
4,791

49
27,052
118,53¢
332,75¢
5,756
568,53(
3,249,84(

1,400,40¢
1,400,40¢
447,55¢
798,90¢
153,94¢
574,47¢
497,85(
17,61¢€
6,217
4,856
47,934
1,260,67.
350,75¢
736
75,15C
245,82¢
4,092
6,007
578,10(

14,282

3,249,841
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30 Szeopztgmber 31 December 20:

Book value of equity (PLN600O0) 1,256,92¢ 1,400,40!

Book value of equity attributable to 1,256,92! 1,400,40¢

Numbeof registered shares (pcs) 447,558,31 447,558,31

Book value of equity attributable to shareholders of the parent, per share (PLN) 2.81 3.13
DEVELIA

WCZESNIEJ LC CORP
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Q32022
Note frompgflc())dwzoz
t030/09/2022
Operating activity
Sales revenue 2.11 200,47¢
Revenue from sale of services 11,521
Revenue from sales of goods and products 188,95:
Cost of goods sold 211 (156,011
Pretax profit/(loss) on sales 44,463
Gain/(loss) on disposal ofinancial fixed assets -
Profit /(loss) on investment property 2.14 20,623
WriteDowns of Inventory -
Selling and distribution cost 2.11 (5,964,
General administrative expenses 2.11 (10,528
Other operating income 5,112
Other Operating Expenses (3,024,
Operating profit/(loss) 50,682
Financial Income 2.12 2,711
Financial Expenses 2.12 (10,041
meﬁ]ré%re in profits (losses) of entities disclosed using th 213 (359)
Pretax profit/(loss) 42,993
Income tax (tax expense) (8,239
Net profit/(loss) 34,754
Other comprehensive income subject to reclassification
profit(loss) in subsequent reporting periods
Cash flow hedges 444
_ Income tax relating to other components of comprehe (79)
income
Other comprehensive income (net) 365
Comprehensive income 35,11¢
DEVELIA

WCZESNIEJ LC CORP

3 Quarters of
2022

cumulatively fro

from 01/01/20z
to 30/09/2022

320,297
42,665
277,63:
(236,839
83,45¢

42,34%

(16,669
(37,867
9,064
(5,665
74,66€
6,471
(30,163

(615)

50,35¢
152
50,511

1,260
(162)
1,098

51,60¢

QR for 3Q 2022

Q32021
period

m 01/07/20z

to 30/09/2021

219,58¢
21,81¢
197,77¢
(172,092
47 49€

13,90z

(4,832
(7,983
2,438
(1,339,
49,68¢
60
(14,008

2

35,737
(6,616
29,121

114
(22)
92

29,212

3 Quarters of
2021
cumulatively
from 01/01/20z
to 30/09/2021

596,33:
64,052
532,28(
(432,968
163,36¢

(6,095,
(13,869
(26,905

4,473

(3,234

117,73¢
587
(14,402

®)

103,91¢
(19,144
84,772

477
©1)
386

85,15€
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Q32022
period
from01/07/202:
to 30/09/2022
Net profit/(loss) attributable to:
Shareholders of the parent 34,754
Minority interest -
34,754
Comprehensive income attributable to:
Shareholders of the parent 35,11¢
Minoritynterest -
35,11¢
Net profit/(loss) per share attributable to equity holders ¢ 0.07
parent (in PLNDasic '
Net profit/(loss) per share attributable to equity holders ¢ 0.07

parent (iRLN}) diluted

DEVELIA

WCZESNIEJ LC CORP

3 Quarters of
2022
cumulatively fro
from 01/01/20z
to 30/09/2022

50,511

50,511

51,60¢

51,60¢

0.11

0.11

QR for 3Q 2022

Q32021
period

m 01/07/20z

to 30/09/2021

29,121

29,121

29,213

29,213

0.07

0.07

3 Quarters of
2021
cumulatively
from 01/01/20z
to 30/09/2021

84,772

84,772

85,15¢

85,15¢

0.19

0.19
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Other capitals
Total capital

Supplementary attributable to

Share capital  capital, reserve Net profit/(loss)

Minority interest ~ Total equity

Other funds shareholders of
funds and the parent
retained earning:

As at 01 January 2022 447 ,55¢ 790,44+ 8,461 153,94¢ 1,400,40¢ - 1,400,40!
Net profit/(loss) for the period of 9 months ) ) ) )

ended 30 September 2022 50,511 50,511 50,511
Other comprehensive income for the period of 9 months ) i i i

ended 30 September 2022 1,098 1,098 1,098
Other comprehensive incoffioe the period of 9 months c c
ended 30 September 2022 ) i 1,098 50,511 51,608 i 51,60¢
Transfer of profit/loss for the previous period to undistribi - 36,381 - (36,381 - - -
Incentive scheme - - 6,312 - 6,312 - 6,312
Payment of dividend - (83,836 - (117,565 (201,401 - (201,401
As at 30 September 2022 447,55¢ 742,98¢ 15,871 50,511 1,256,92¢ - 1,256,92!

DEVELIA
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The Develia S.A. Group

As at 01 January 2021

Net profit/(loss) for 2021
Othecomprehensive income for 2021
Total comprehensive income for 2021

Transfer of profit for the previous period to undistributed

Incentive scheme
Payment of dividend
As at 31 December 2021

As at 01 January 2021

Net profit/(loss) for the period of 9 months
ended 30 September 2021

Other comprehensive income for the period of 9 months
ended 30 September 2021

Other comprehensive income for the period of 9 months
ended 30 September 2021

Transfer of profit for the previous period to undistributed

Allocated to the payment of dividend
As at 30 September 2021

Share capital

CONSOLIDATED QUARTERLY REPORT

Other capitals

Supplementary
capital, reserve

Net profit/(loss)

funds and Other funds

retained earning:
447 55¢ 1,005,32! 3,701 (138,800
- - - 153,94¢
- - 451 -
- - 451 153,94¢
- (138,800 - 138,80(
- - 4,309 -
- (76,085 - -
447 ,55¢ 790,44 8,461 153,94¢

Other capitals

Supplementary
Share capital i Net profit/(loss
p capital, reserve . oo profit/(loss)

funds and

retained earning:
447,55¢ 1,005,32¢ 3,701 (138,800
- - - 84,772
- - 386 -
- - 386 84,772
- (138,800 - 138,80(
- (76,085 - -
447,55¢ 790,44 4,087 84,772
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Total capital
attributable to

shareholders of

the parent

1,317,78t
153,94¢
451
154,397

4,309
(76,085
1,400,40¢

Total capital
attributable to

shareholders of

the parent
1,317,78¢
84,772

386

85,15¢8

(76,085
1,326,86:

Minority interest

Minority interest

11

Total equity

1,317,78:
153,94¢
451
154,397

4,309
(76,085
1,400,40¢

Total equity

1,317,78:

84,77z

386

85,15¢

(76,085
1,326,86:



Develia S.A. Group

= —|>

© N WN P

S0 h WM P

®©mnmo

CONSOLIDATED QUARTERLY REPORT

Cash flows from operating activities
Pretax profit/(loss)

Total adjustments

Amortisation addpreciation

Foreign exchange gains/(losses)
Interest and profit sharing (dividends)
Share in profits (losses) of entities disclosed using the equity method
Profi{Loss) on investm@nbperty
Change in the balance of provisions
Change in inventory

Change in receivables

Change in current liabilities except for loans and bonds

. Change in prepayments and accruals
. Other adjustments
. Net cash from operating activities (I+I)

Income tax paid

Net cash flow from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Cash inflows

Disposal of investment in property

Impact arising from financial assets

Disposal of shares

Outflows

Acquisition of intangible assets and property, plant and equipment
Investment in property

Expenditure for acquisition of financial assets
Acquisition of shares

. Net cash flow from investing activities (I+I)

Cash flow from financing activities

Cash inflows

Bank and ndrank loans

Issue of debt securities

Outflows

Repayment of bank andbaork loans

Redemption of debt securities

Payment of liabilities arising from finance lease agreements
Interest

Dividends paid to equity holders of the parent

Net cash flows from financing activities (I+Il)

Total net cash flows, (A.III+B.II+C.II1)

Change in cash flows in tB&atement of Financial Position
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period, including:  (F+D)

- restricted cash

DEVELIA
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Period of 9
months ended
30 September

2022

50,35¢
(1,222
1,489
16,142
30,23¢
615
(41,058
(6,392
(379,197
73,644

(54,872

394,24:
(36,075
49,137
(21,663
27,474

468,85¢
391,07z
77,781

(81,474

(1,154}
(17,015
(33,697
(29,608
387,37¢

15,99C
15,99C
(499,972
(204,095
(68,496
(278)
(25,702
(201,401
(483,982
(69,129
(69,129
332,75¢
263,62t
20

QR for 3Q 2022

Period of 9
months ended
30 September

2021

103,91¢
68,934
1,154
655
19,16

3
3,734
(1,112
(108,131
(43,680

42,107

160,22¢

(5,185
172,85(
(65,616
107,23¢

66,17€

66,172

5
(111,728
(858)
(17,675
(93,190
(%)
(45,550

165,18¢
15,18€
150,00(
(209,475
(14,843
(100,000
(233)
(18,314
(76,085
(44,289
17,395
17,395
377,03¢
394,431
20
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Develia S.A. Group QR for 3Q 2022
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The Develia S.A. Group ("the Group", ithe Devel.
The composition of the Group is presented in item 2.2.

Develi& . A. (the fParent Undertakingo, the ACompanyo
March 2006. The Company's registered officThe i s s
Parent Undertaking has betrazhinto the register of entrepreneurs of the National Court Register maintainec
the DistricFalRoyctndornWwooggaw, the 4th Commerci
KRS No. 0000253077. The Company has been tastdgicatiidentification number REGON 020246398.

The Parent Undertaking and the Group's subsidiaries were established for an indefinite period. The
Undertakingd6s primary activity i s:

1 PKD 64.20Z Activities of financial holding companies
1 PKD 68.2B.Rental and management of own or leased real estate

1 PKD 41.10.Z Completion of construction projects related to putting up buildings

9 PKD 68.10.Z Buying and selling of own real estate

9 PKD 41.20.Z Construction works related to the completion ohksioleesiaemntial buildings

There is no parent undertaking of Develia S.A. as at the date hereof nor was there any such entity throug
period covered by these financial statements.

Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements of Gr@reelar the period of 9 months ended 30
September 2022. The detailed description of the component parts of the consolidated financial statements is
in item 2.6.

As at 30 September 2022 and 31 December 2021, theAD&seligp Somprised the following subsidiaries, to
which the full consolidation method was applied, and jointly controlled entities, valued by the equity method:

Effective share of Develia S.A.

Registered 30 September 2022 31 December 2021
Company name ) . . . .
office Share irCapital Share in Capital
Arkady Wrocgawskie S. Wr oc g 100% 100%
Develia Wrocgaw S. A. Wr oc g 100% 100%
Develia Warszawa Sp. z 0.0. Wr oc g 100% 100%

Krak-w Zielony Zgoci e Wr o c § 100% (directly and indirec  100% (directly and indirectl

Q¢

LC Corp Invest | Sp. z 0.0. Wr o ¢ § 100% (directly and indirec  100%directly and indirectly

LC Corp Invest Il Sp. z 0.0. Wr oc g 100% 100%

LC Corp Invest Ill Sp. z 0.0. Wr oc g 100% (indirectly) 100%

LC Corp Invest VII Sp. z 0.0. Wr oc g 100% 100%

LC Corp Invest VIII Sp. z 0.0. Wr oc g 100% (indirectly) 100%
DEVELIA

WCZESNIEJ LC CORP
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QR for 3Q 2022

CONSOLIDATED QUARTERLY REPORT

LC Corp Invest IX Sp. z 0.0.

LC Corp Invest X Sp. z 0.0.

LC Corp Invest Xl Sp. z 0.0.

LC Corp Invest XIl Sp. z 0.0.

LC Corp Invest XV Sp. z 0.0.

4resident Sp. z 0.0.

LC Corp Invest XVII Sp. z 0.0.

LC Corp Invest XV Sp. z 0.0. Projekt 2 Sp. k.
LC Corp Invest XV Sp. z 0.0. Projekt 4 Sp. k.
LC Corp Invest XV Sp. z 0.0. Projekt 6 Sp. k.
LC Corp Invest XV Sp. z 0.0. Projekt 7 Sp. k.
LC Corp Invest XV Sp. z 0.0. Projekt 8 Sp. k.
LC Corp Invest XVII Sp. z 0.0. Projekt 20 Sp. k.
LC Corp Invest XVII Sp. z 0.0. Projekt 21 Sp. k.
LC Corp Invest XVII Sp. z 0.0. Projekt 22 Sp. k.
LC Corp Invest XV Sp. z 0.0. Investments S.K./
Develia Invest Sp. z o0.0.

LC Corp Service S.A.

Projekt Ciszewskiego Sp. z o0.0.
My Sl iborska S
LizboEska Sp.

Projekt
Projekt
Projek€Ciszewskiego Sp. z 0.0. Sp. k.

My Sl iborska S
LizboEska Sp.

Projekt
Projekt

As at 30 September 2022 and as at 31 December 2021, the share in the total vote held by the Parent Underte

=
=
o]
o

o O 0o o o o o o

Warsaw
Warsaw
Warsaw
Warsaw
Warsaw

Warsaw

Q@C @ @ @QC QC Q¢ @ @ @QC @QC QC QC Q¢ Q¢ @ QC QC Q¢

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100% (indirectly)
100% (indirectly)
100% (indirectly)
100% (indirectly)
100% (directiynd indirectly
100% (indirectly)
100% (directly and indirec
100% (directly and indire
100%
100% (directly and indirec

80% directly

80% directly

80% directly
80% (directly and indirec
80% (directly and indirec
80%(directly and indirectl

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100% (indirectly)
100% (indirectly)
100% (indirectly)
100% (indirectly)
100% (indirectly)
100% (directly and indirect|
100% (indirectly)
100% (directly aindirectly)
100% (directly and indirect|
100%
100% (directyd indirectly)

80% directly

80% directly

80% directly
80% (directly and indirectly
80% (directly and indirectly
80% (directly and indirectly

subsidiaries was equal to the share of the Parent Undertaking in tihe sagitaitest

Apart from the transactions described below, no other transaction consisting in the acquisition or sale of busil
was completed by the compheienging to the Group in the period of 9 months ended 30 September 2022.

DEVELIA
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I n the period of 9 months ended 30 September 202:

On 28 April 2022, the Extraordessral Meeting of LC Corp Invest VIII Sp. z 0.0. adopted a resolution on volun
redemption of shares in the company share capital and reduction in share capital from PLN 13,600,000 to PL
i.e. by an amount of PLN 13,550,000 by the redethBign®6 0 s har es. Proceeding
creditors of share capital reducti on. The compan
registry court.

On 01 June 2022, an increase in the share capital of LC Corp. S&asiceg&tered by the District Court for
Wr oeFGgaabw yczna in Wrocgaw, 6th National Court Regi
the issue of 500,000 new D series registered shares.

On 22 June 2022, a competent registry stererbg new company name of Warszawa Przyokopowa Sp. z 0.0.
which was changed to Develia Warszawa Sp. z 0.0.

On 01 August 2022, a competent registry court registered a new company name of Sky Tower S.A., wt
changed to Develia Wrocgaw S. A.

On 19 Agust 2022, a registry court made an entry relating to the redemption of shares in LC Corp Invest Il sj
and consequently, a reduction in its share capital from PLN 1,700,000.00 to PLN 100,000.00, i.e. by a sur
1,600,000.00.

On 29 AugustZX) a competent registry court registered a new company name of LC Corp Invest XVI Sp. :
which was changed to 4resident Sp. z 0.0.

On 01 September 2022, a competent registry court registered a merger between LC Corp Invest Il sp. z 0.
Corplnvest XV sp. z 0.0. Projekt 6 sp.k. and an increase in the share capital of LC Corp Invest Il sp. z o.0. fi
100,000.00 to PLN 100,500.00. The aforesaid companies merged pursuant to Article 492(1)(1) of the
Commercial Partnerships and Cewgzotde, through the transfer of the entire assets of LC Corp Invest XV sp.
0.0. Projekt 6 sp.k. to LC Corp Invest Il sp. z 0.0.

On 16 September 2022, Develia S.A. disposed of all the shares it had in the companies LC Corp Invest Ill -
and LQCorp Invest VIl sp. z 0.0. to LC Corp Service S.A., which on the said day became a shareholder i
companies.

On 21 September 2022, a competent registry court registered the redemption of shares in LC Corp Invest
0.0., and consequenthgduction in its share capital from PLN 13,600,000.00 to PLN 50,000.00.

Apart from the aforementioned events, no other significant changes in the composition of the Group took plz
period from 01 January 2022 to 30 September 2022.

As at 01 January 2022 and 30 September 2022, the Management Board of Develia S.A. did not change
composed of the following persons:

| President of ManagementBoam dr zej OSI i z§o
9 Vice President of ManageBeentd Pawe § Ruszczak
1 Vice President of ManagementBbbadr i us z PogawsKki

These Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group concerning the period of 9 mont
30September 2022 was approved by the Management Board on 15 November 2022.
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These Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements of the Develia Group are comprised of:

- Consolidated Statement of Fin®osition as at 30 September 2022 and comparable financial data as at <
December 2021;

- Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income for the three quarters of 2022, i.e. for the period of 9
cumulatively from 01 January 2022 to 30 Septemlsew2D23, eomparable data for a corresponding period
of the previous year, i.e. from 01 January 2021 to 30 September 2021,

- Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the three quarters of 2022, i.e. for the period of 9 months, cun
from 01 January220to 30 September 2022, as well as comparable data for a corresponding period of
previous year, i.e. from 01 January 2021 to 30 September 2021;

- Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity as at 30 September 2022 and comparable data as at 30 S
2021 and as at 31 December 2021,

- Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Notes to financial statements and other information defined in Section 66 of the Regulation of the Minister o
dated 29 March 2018 on Current and Periodic InRarblistied by Issuers of Securities and on Conditions for

Regarding Information Required by Law-Mémoer State as Equivalent, representing an element of this
Consolidated Quarterly Report Q3 2022, are included in section 4.

These Interim Condenseds@olated Financial Statements of the Develia Group and the separate condens
financial statements of Develia S.A. were prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting ¢
(Al FRSO0) adopted by tibnal AdEduntingiStandardNot3d.cul ar wi t h t

As at the date of the approval of these financial statements for publication, on account of the ongoing pr
introducing IFRS in the EU and the business activity conducted by the Group, the International Financial F
Standards, in terms obaaoting principles adopted by the Group, vary from IFRS already approved by the EU.

| FRS comprise standards and interpretations acce
the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Coemm ( Al FRI C0o) .

These Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements were prepared using the historical cost metho
for investment property which is measured at fair value.

The Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statementseade priesentt housand Pol i sh
values included in the tables and descriptions, i

The Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements were prepared on the assumption that the
companies/ould continue as a going concern in the foreseeable future. As at the day of the approval of
Financial Statements, no circumstances were identified implying any threats to the continuation of the
companiesd business activity.

The Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements do not contain all information and disclosures re
annual consolidated financi al statements and t he
statements for the year érddeDecember 2021, which were published on 30 March 2022.

Information on the accounting principles adopted by the Group was presented in the annual consolidated
statements of the Develia Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 OpublishezDa8.3

The Management Board of the Parent Undertaking used their best knowledge of the applied standar
interpretations, and also the methods and principles of the valuaiian i@hsmdicthe enclosed condensed
consolidated financi al statement s. Preparing the
Management Board to make some estimates and assumptions, which are reflected hereis.rii&e \aantyial result
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from these estimates. The financial data for the period of 9 months ended 30 September 2022 presented he
not subject to auditorodés examinati on.

In the process of applying the accounting principles (policsssietogecified hereinbelow, the professional
judgement of the management was, apart from the accounting estimates, of the greatest importance.

Themoment of transferring the control to the client determines when revenues from the sales of residential &
premises can be recognised.

Upon the sale of residential and retail premises, the control is transferred to the client wheof daeh and eve
following conditions are fulfilled:

(i) obtaining the occupancy permit for the buildings;

(i) payment of 100% of the value of the premises, based on the developer agreement or preliminary agre
(iii) acceptance of the premises by theeslidanced by the delivery and acceptance protocol;

(iv) signing of the developer agreement or notarial deed transferring the title.

In the case of the financing of part of the price by the state in accordance with the Act of 27 September 2013
Aid in the Purchase of the First Flat by Young People (MDM), the conditions set out in item (ii) are also me
bank financing the client confirms the reservation of funds (the last instalment of the payment) for this purj
when the developereggnent contains the relevant provision.

The Group classifies lease according to IFRS 16.

The basic assumptions concerning the future have been discussed below as well as other key reasons fc
occurring as at the balastmet date and entailing a significant risk of the considerable adjustment of the carr
value of assets and liggslin the following financial year.

The Group recognises a deferred tax asset based on the assumption that a tax profit enabling its utilisation ¢
obtained in the future. Worse tax results obtained in the future eaffddiahattthis assumption might become
groundless. Deferred income tax is presented in Note 2.18.

At the end of each quarter of an accounting year, the Group independently measures the fair value of its in
properties in EUR based on the model of investment capitalisation or maintains the valuation in EUR carried
independent valuer at the end of the preceding year (provided there were no significant indications to revalu
the end of each agnbng year, the fair value of investment property is established or verified by an indeper
valuer. As at 30 September 2022, investment property is measured on the basis of valuations of valuers.
| ocated i n Malin (entee andéntesimeWPropergha vajue af the laand is Malimpwae s
presented as a value resulting from a real esta
comparative approach, for which the comparison in pairs method wagiegpityed.ctaunt the alternative

legal status of the land property and its changed purpose in the Study of land use conditions and directions
development, as proposed. At the end of each accounting year, the fair value of invesstebligiregenty is
verified by an independent valuer. Investment property is shown in Note 2.14.
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The fair value of financial instruments in the form of forward contracts, medsardd@idhiprofit or loss, is
determined on the last day of each quarter in a given accounting year and at the end of each accounting ye:
basis of the valuation made by an institution which professionally measures such finanoiaingaotbertons (a

by the Bank) or on the basis of a financial model.

The fair value of IRS and CAP financial instruments, covered by the cash flow hedge accounting, is determine
last day of each quartea igiven accounting year and at the end of each accounting year on the basis of t
valuation made by an institution which professionally measures such financial transactions (such as the bank)

At the end of each reporting pdr@tanagement Board verifies if there is any evidence pointing to the loss of ve
of its property development projects under implementation on the basis of sales reports, market research ¢
available evidence. Should the risk of the lass @foral the value of such projects is estimated employing the
DCF method, which is used to establish i#lewwrité inventories. The DCF method is based on discounted cast
flows generated within the approved investment schedules and proceatis éfqmetheses, allowing for the

sale price of 1 square metre of usable floor area of flats in accordance with the current market situation. The
rate takes account of the weighted average cost of external and own capital (WACC).

The writdownf inventories are estimated as at 30 September 2022 and may be subject to change depend
the fluctuation of market prices of land, selling prices of flats, construction costs, project completion sched
discount rate calculations in the fiheractual results may vary from these estimates, which were calculated on 1
grounds of the data available as at the reporting date. It is also related to the uncertainty regarding the
estimation of the market conditions in the followingngsaqgei@ly, valuation allowances may change in the
following financial periods. Inventories addwyrité inventories are presented in Note 2.15.

The regulations concerning the tax on goods and sgrwieds taw and burdens associated with social insurance
are subject to frequent changes. These frequent changes make no appropriate reference points, incc
interpretations and few established precedents that might be applicable. Theidnisdalgoremunitin
uncertainties, resulting in different opinions regarding the legal interpretation of tax regulations, both amot
authorities and between public authorities and companies.

Tax settlements and other areas of activity (for estondeacd foreign currency issues) may be subject to
inspection by bodies authorised to impose high penalties and fines, and any additional tax liabilities arising
inspection must be paid together with high interest. Having considereibribgsleectanditisk in Poland is
greater than in countries with a more mature tax system.

Consequently, amounts presented and disclosed in financial statements may change in the future as a resul
decision of a tax audit authority.

On 15 July 26, changes were made to the Tax Ordinance Act in order to take account of the provisions
General Artivoidance Rule (GAAR). GAAR is to prevent the creation and use of artificial legal structures cre
order to avoid the payment of tax il PGIWAR defines the avoidance of taxation as an action made above all
order to achieve a tax advantage, conmnaigr given circumstaricesthe object and purpose of the provisions

of the tax actn accordance with GAAR, such an action dessliniot the tax advantage, if the operation was
artificial. Any occurrence of (i) unjustified separation of operations, (ii) involvement of intermediary entities d¢
lack of economic justification, (iii) elements that null or compensataneh(ii)aither actions having a similar
effect to the previously mentioned, may be treated as a premise of artificial operations subject to GAA
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regulations will require a much greater degree of professional judgement in assessing tbestaf conseque
individual transactions.

The GAAR clause should be applied to transactions made after its entry into force and transactions that
carried out before the entry into force of the GAAR clause, but for which benefits were orearafstitltheing gain
date of entry of this clause into force. The implementation of these provisions will enable Polish tax audit aut
guestion the legal arrangements and agreements carried out by taxable persons, such as the restructu
reorganigen of a group, provided, however, that such arrangements and agreements are related to the above

The Group recognises and measures the assets or liabilities in respect of current and deferred income
compliance with the requirements of IAS 12, Income Tax on the basis of the tax profit (loss), tax base, unrel
losses, unused tax exengptod tax rates, taking into account the uncertainty associated with tax settlements.

The table below presents balance sheet figures of the above items as at 30 September 2022 and as at 31 C
2021:

30 September 31 December

2022 2021
Deferred tax asset 27,51C 10,052
Investment property measured at fair value 440,737 411,17¢
Noncurrent assets classified as held for sale and measured at fair value 195,13( 568,53(
Fair Value of Financial Instruments in the Form of Forward Contracts - (301)
Fair value of IRS and CAP financial instruments 909 (386)
Deferred tax liability (45,969 (47,934
Writedown of inventories (53,565 (53,572

The accounting principles (policies) appligutepatation of these consolidated financial statements are consisten
with those adopted to draw up the Group's consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 Deceml
save for the following principles. The below changes to IFRS hpltedbiethege consolidated financial
statements as of the date of their entry into force:

T Amendments to | AS 16 0 PProceedsrBefgre Intdhded Wse approved byEtige EU p
on 28 June 20@dpplicable to annual periods beginniraften bdanuary 222

f Amendments to | AS 37 OProvisi ons, i Oberous Contrgéesnt L i
Cost of Fulfilling a Contract, approved by the EU on 28 June 2021 (applicable to annual periods beginni
after 1 January 202

T Amendments to | FRS 3 AmneBdmertsioeReferentee tmthé Coacepiual Rrangework
including amendments to IFRS 3 approved in the EU on 28 June 2021 (applicable to annual periods begi
or after 1 January 2022);

f Amendmentstonise|l | aneous standards 0RRMARrO0 viegnoehdetgsts t o
made as part of the IFRS Annual Improvement Process (IFRS 1, IFRS 9, IFRS 16 and IAS 41) are d
mainly to deal with 1gonformities and ensure the consistency obtgfimvapproved by the EU on 28 June
2021(amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9 and IAS 41 are applicable to annual periods beginning on or after 1.
2022. Amendments to IFRS 16 concern only an illustrative example, hence no entry into force date has be

The adoption of the standards and amendments to existing standards, as mentioned above, did not e
considerable impact on the financial statements of the Develia S.A. Group.
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On the approval of these financial statements, the following amendments to existing standarde were issue

IFRIC and approved for application within the EU, nevertheless they will enter into force on a later date:

T I FRS 17 01 ns uwitkaforiher am@mdments t ¢FRS 17 published by the IASB on 25 June 202
approved in the EU on 19 November @flhide to annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2023);

T Amendments to | AS 1 0Pr e s @isdosuteiobAccoumting HoliciesaApaieda |
approved on 02 March 2022 (applicable to annual periods beginning on orya?@23)1 Janua

 Amendmentstb AS 8 OAccounting Policies, C hi Defigitorsof i n A
accounting estimates approved in the EU on 02 March 2022 (applicable to annual periods beginning on o
January 2023);

Currently, IFRS in the form approved by the EU do not differ significantly from regulatiansrisatiedaby the |

Financi al Reporting I nterpretations Committee (0

standards which as at the date of the publication of these statements were not approved for application with

(the belowntry into force dates relate to the full version of standards):

f Amendments to | AS 1 0Pr ed ElassifedtionofrLiabdittes as Curranhor Noa |
current (applicable to annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2023);

1 Amemd ment s t o | AS Defefred @dxmetatednte Assetsxadd Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction (applicable to annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2023);

1 Amendmentstb FRS 17 01 n s UIFRSME and IERSM tappliethéfisstitimeomparatives
(applicable to annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2023).

T I FRS 14 O0Regul at (applcable tofarualt parlods Aeginnng on torsafier 1 Jariuary 2016)
the European Commission decided notdaheitmocess of approving this temporary standard for applicatior
within the EU before the release of the final version of IFRS 14;

T Amendments to | FRS 10, 0Consolidated Financi al
Joi nt M eadetou Coatigbation of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
subsequent amendments (the date of entry into force of the amendments was postponed until research \
the equity method have been completed).

The Group is in thecess of verification of the impact of thenahtiwred standards on its financial situation,
performance and the scope of information presented in financial statements.

According to the -@entongudesvstandards and dmasimexistingestaraddrds wald
not have had major impact on the financial statements if they had been applied by the Grshpettdiie balance

Apart from regulations approved by the EU, there is also hedge accounting for a portfodibilitiesssbes and |
principles of which have not been approved for application within the EU yet.

According to the Groupbs estimates, the applicat
under Il AS 39, fieFci ongannictiiad n lannsdt r Memeesnu rse meRnt 6 woul d
financial statements, if the standard in question had been approved for application-gisestthie balance

The operations of the Develia S.A. Group are not seasonal by nature. They are related to the investment cyc
implemented property development projects, which is particularly noticeable in the recognition of the proceed:
sale of residentiand retail premises. In accordance with IFRS 15, such proceeds can only be recognised

practically all risks and benefits related to given premises have been transferred to the client and the revent
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measured in a reliable manner. Consedersiytes results in a given period depend on the value of the premise

transferred to the clients in accordance with the above definition.

Period of 9
months ended
30 September

2022
Revenue from the rental of office space and the shopping and service centre and re 42,665
Revenue from sale of services (IFRS 16) 42,665
Revenue from the sale of residential and retail premises 277,63
Other -
Revenue from sales of goods and products (IFRS 15) 277,63
Total revenue 320,297
Period of 9

months ended
30 September

2022
Amortisation and depreciation 1,489
Consumption of materials and energy 5,580
Contracted services, including: 20,97t
- Operating services in commercial buildings (cleaning, renovations, security, interm 11,881
- 1T and communicatisessices 1,031
- Real property audits and market analysis 1,562
- Tax and legal advisory services 4,314
Taxes and charges 4,755
Remuneration 34,431
Social security and other benefits 5,106
Other costs by type 7,588
Change in products and work in progress 211,451
Total 291,37¢
Cost of goods sold 236,83¢
Selling and distribution cost 16,66¢
General and administrative expense 37,867
Total 291,37¢

In 2021, the Company introduced an incentive scheme aimed at members of the Management Board
personnel of the Company. The scheme is expected to be operated for P@2vedvad®2the scheme, the
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Period of 9
months ended
30September

2021

64,052

64,052
531,962
318
532,28(
596,33:

Period of 9
months ended
30 September

2021

1,154
6,607
24,44¢
17,22¢
741
1,441
1,937
6,660
26,205
4,544
5,442
398,681
473,74:

432,96¢
13,86¢
26,90¢
473,74z
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appropate portion of equity instruments (warrants) will be allocated to key personnel by the Management Boa
Management Board members by the Supervisory Board on a yearly basis. Warrants may be exchangec
(Parent) Comp a nrics, previded rheweverathat ralevanpvesting ¢onddiahs have been fulfille

In the period of 9 months ended 30 September 2022, on account of the incentive scheme being granted, tt
recognised, under the rules laid down in IFRS 2, in ttemeostrafion a sum of PLN 6,312,000. In 2021, the

Group recognised in the cost of remuneration a sum of PLN 4,309,000.

Revenue from bank interest

Surplus of positive over negative foreign exchange differences
Valuation of derivatives

Measurement of and gains on financial instruments

Other

Financial Income

Interest, commission on bonds and loans (uncapitalised portion)
Interest on lease

Measurement of and losses on financial instruments

Surplus of negative over positive foreign exchange differences
Valuation of derivatives

Tax expense on share capital increases in subsidiaries

Other

Financial Expenses

The value of investments in joint ventures being mutual contractual arrangements valued by the equity me

presented in the below table:

Projekt Lizbo&ka Sp. z o0.o0
Projekt Lizbo&ka Sp. z
Projekt Ciszewskiego Sp. z 0.0. Sp. k.

Projekt Ciszewskiego Sp. z 0.0.

Projekt MySliborska Sp.
Projekt MySliborska Sp. z
TOTAL

o
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Period of 9
months ended
30 September

2022

5,804
362
285

20

6,471

Period of 9
months ended
30 September

2022
8,966
1,282

345

19,272
3

295

30,162

30 September
2022

44,184

37,013

4,306

85,502

QR for 3Q 2022

Period of 9
months ended
30 September

2021

141
423

23
587

Period of 9
months ended
30 September

2021

11,84¢
908

1,487
3

155

14,402

31 December
2021

44,625
8,078
1
2,419
1
55,122
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Profit or logsf investments in joint ventures being mutual contractual arrangements valued by the equity mett
presented in the below table:

Period of 9
months ended
30 September
2022
Projekt Lizbo&ka Sp. z o0.0. Sp. k. (439)
Projekt LizboE&ka Sp. z o. . -
Projekt Ciszewskiego Sp. z 0.0. Sp. k. (161)
Projekt Ciszewskiego Sp. z 0.0. Q)
Projekt MySliborska Sp. z Sp. k. (13)
Projekt MySliborska Sp. z . 0. 1)
TOTAL (615)

The Develia S.A. Group carried outlgpthinanalysis of theagiveement made with Grupo Lar Holding Polonia
Sp.zo.0. Based on that analysis, specifically, the provisions concerning the requirement for unanimity of botl
to the agreement when taking all significant decisions by companies coveredryithspitgreéimlding 80%
capital commitment in individual companies covered by the JV agreement, investments have been classifi
consolidated financial statements of the Develia S.A. Group as a joint contractual arrangementdjeint venture:
valued by the equity method.

In 2021, on account of planned collaboration with the Atal Group in relation to a property development proj
carried out on a JV basis, Develia S.A. acquired 50% of shares in Atal Services Sp. 20621 (mj6Btiune
venture valued by the equity method). Eventually, the property development project was not implementec
coll aboration for the said project failed, the I :
07 SeptembebD21, and consequently, endegba@tion with the Atal Group. There are no equity relationships
between the Develia S.A. Group and the Atal S.A. Group in connection with the aforesaid transaction.
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As at 30 September 2022, the Group's investment property includes:

1 Wola Center office building in Warsaw;
9 Project under preparation: Wrocgaw, ul . Kol ej ow
9 Ilnvestment | and | ocated in Malin (near to Wrocg

Value adjustmen
for right of
30September 2022 Value EUR PLN Value perpetual TOTAL
usufruct to land
acc. to IFRS 16

Investment property already constructed

Wola Retro 73,29C 356,90¢ 13,73¢ 370,647

Investment property in preparation

Wrocgaw, Kol ej owa n/a 42,28C 4,883 47,162

Malin n/a 70,09C - 70,09C
487,90(

Value adjustmen
for right of
31 December 2021 Value EUR PLN Value perpetual TOTAL
usufruct to land
acc. to IFRS 16

Investment property already constructed

Wola Retro 71,30C 327,931 13,14¢ 341,08t

Investment property in preparation

Wrocgaw, Kol ej owa n/a 35,60C 4,885 40,48t

Malin n/a 70,09C - 70,09C
451,66(

As at 30 September 2022, the fair value measuremdrewd\idllarsaw was made on the basis of an appraisal
made by a professional real estate valuer and included expenditures incurred, increasing thus the property v
the valuation date, compared to the value as at thehealibdate.

The Markefalue of the real property has been estimated in the income approach, using the investment meth
the judgement at the Level Three, as defined in IFRS 13. Input data considered for the valuation included, am
things, investment plans, informagiating to planned development including plans, descriptions and budgets,
well as environmental surveys. The income approach and the investment method are based on the assumptic
value of a real property depends on the rental incomédhaiteegned from the property and the capitalisation
rate. Income from the real property is due to rental agreements and in the case of free surface with the use
rental rates. The rate of return, known as capitalisation rate, is deterrhamd ohthe analysis of similar
transactions on the market in a given financial year. Valuation is expressed in the currency of the invoiced re
EUR and converted into PLN at the average NBP exchange rate at the date of thecenmiig pgvierdac

As at 30 September 2022, the Group al siovestimergc | os
Property The value of the | and in Malin was presente
assessment which was based on a comparative approach, for which the comparison in pairs method was em
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taking into account the alternative legal status of the land property and its changed purpose in the Study of
conditions and directions of spewi@lopment, as proposed.

The reconciliation of changes to the klaat®alues of investment property in the period ended 30 Septembe
2022 and the year 31 December 2021 is presented in the table below:

Period of 9
months ended  Year ended 31
30 September December 2021

2022

At the beginning of the reporting period 451,66( 1,016,74!
Recognition and Settlement of Right of perpetual usufruct according to IFRS 16 589 9,837
Capital expenditure incurred 16,774 17,072
Reclassificationnoficurrent assets classified as held for sale - (565,843
Disposal of real property - 8)
Revaluation of property fair value (EUR/PLN conversion) 19,28C (2,983;
Revaluation of property fair vatee liadue to changes in the EUR valugiroperty,

finishing works and selling costs) (403) (23,160
At the end of the reporting period 487,90( 451,66(

As at 30 September 20&#icurrenfissets Classified as Held foiir@dleled the real property: a retail and office

centre AArkady Wrocgawskied in Wrocgaw.
Value
adjustment for
30 September 2022 Value EUR  PLNValue  ghtof — Costsofreal  royps
perpetual estate sale
usufruct to lanc
acc. to IFRS 1
Noncurrent assetslassified as held for sale
Arkady Wrocgawski e 202,80¢ 14,50¢ - 217,31«
217,31«
Given the fact that a |l etter of intent was signe
Wr o ¢ § a wmdpdrtyecomnrercad, the said property was presented as at 30 September 2022 as the sum o
- Fair value of investment property Arkady Wrocga
real estate valuer (valuation: EUR 37,600,0fih\adteion to PLN: PLN 183,104,000);
- Acquisition price for | and |l ocated in Wrocgaw a
was PLN 19,701,000.
Value
adjustment for
31 December 2021 Value EUR  PLN Value right of Costsofreal  orp
perpetual estate sale
usufructto land
acc. to IFRS 1
Noncurrent assets classified as held for sale
Sky Tower 82,392 378,95¢ - (17,209 361,74¢
Arkady Wrocgawski e 192,50¢ 14,282 0 206,78t
568,53(
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As at 31 Decemi®821, the fair value of the investment property Sky Tower was determined in accordance \
sale and purchase agreement for the disposal of
Tower 0 buil ding i stEUR84WI0a dess the aaiue of yheentives for éenaatsiimthecamour
of EUR 1,878,000 under agreements signed prior to the date of entering into the preliminary sale and f
agreement, which have not been paid as at the date of valuationptovésiditis have been made for estimated
costs associated with the disposal of property in the amount of PLN 17,209,000.

Given the fact that a |l etter of intent was signe
Wr o c § aeal préperyy commenced, the said property was presented as at 31 December 2021 as the sum 0

- Fair value of investment property Arkady Wrocga
real estate valuer (valuation: EUR 37,68f0@@nversion to PLN: PLN 172,937,000);
- Acquisition price for |l and | ocated in Wrocgaw a

was PLN 19,566,000.

Onlxseptember 2021, an | ssuerds subsidiary, Sky Tc
100% voting rights attaching to such shares, giving the right to vote at the general meeting, and Olimp Investr
0.0., with its registerdfite in Warsaw, a company controlled by an alternative investment fund managed by
Adventum Group (the APurchasero), entered into a
the ownership right to developed land on whighamwto s e bui |l ding call ed ASky
95 Powsta®-w $INskich street, having the total
Agreement 0). The remainder of0.46%,eill rerhamineghe poesessidn®f o
the owners of separated premises in the Sky Tower building. The price for the Sky Tower Share was agreed ¢
free and cadhee basis at EUR 84,420,000, plus Value Added Tax (VAT) and less the el derdémaeistiv

under agreements signed prior to the date of entering into the Preliminary Agreement, which have not been |
the date the final agreement (the AFinal Agreeme
Ag eement (the fAPriceodo).

On 15 March 2022, an | ssuerdéds subsidiary, Sky To
an alternative investment fund managed by the Adventum Group, entered into a final sales agreement for the
of 79.55% of share in the ownership right to developed land on whiclraprauéie  bui | di ng c al
buil t, which is | ocated at 95 Powsta@E -w $1 Nskicl
Shareo) (Ptuhree hfaSael eAgarecement 0). The remainder of t
will remain in the possession of the owners of separated premises in the Sky Tower building. The price fol
Tower Share was agreed on drdeldnd cadhee basis at EUR 84,270,000.00, plus Value Added Tax (VAT) anc
less the value of incentives for tenants under agreements signed prior to the date of entering into the Pri
Agreement, which had not been paid as at the date the Sale and Runemasealdgnade, i.e. in the amount of
EUR 1,878,436.64, and was paid in full on the date of making the Sale and Purcha$e Agpeemébt.
entering into the Sale and Purchase Agreement, granted corporate guarantee up to the amoun®®f EUR 2,43
to be used as security for the Sellerdés performar
Funds obtained from the sale were used for the complete repayment of a bank loan in the total amount
41,975,589.96 taken out under an agteaade between Sky Tower S.A. and a syndicate of banks comprised
Alior Bank S.A., based in Warsaw, and Getin Noble Bank S.A., based in Warsaw, of 29 December 2012, as «
The maximum amount of the said loan was EUR 60,000,000, which dderdesigaaténg the costs of
construction of ASky Tower o building.
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The following table shows Profit /(Loss) on investment property disclosed in the Consolidated Stater

Comprehensive Income:

Period of 9
morths ended
30 September

2022
Revenue from sales of real estate 391,07z
Value of real estate sold (391,072
Change in real estate valuation in respect of altered EUR to PLN exchangeeaitedwit 41,56€
Change in real estate valuation in respect of expenditures incurred within the perioc (513)
Revaluation of provisions for sale of real property 705
Adjustment for linearisation of revenues from rental 587
Total 42,34E

The below table presents details relating to Profit /(Loss) on Investment Property in the period of 9 months

QR for 3Q 2022

Period of 9

months ended

30 September
2021

(3,452,

3,505
(3,787
(2,361
(6,095

September 2022:
Period of 9 months ended Arkady .
30 September 2022 Wr oc Ga Sky Tower Wola Retro Malin TOTAL
Revenue from sales of real estate - 391,072 - - 391,072
Value of real estate sold - (391,072 - - (391,072
Change in real estate valuation in respect of altered EU
exchange rate within the period 10,166 12.12¢ 19,28 . 41,566
Change ireal estate valuation in respect of expenditures
within the period (50) (60) ) (403) (513)
Revaluation of provisions for sale of real property - 705 - - 705
Adjustment for linearisation of revenues from rental 445 424 (282) - 587
Total 10,561 13,18¢ 18,998 (403) 42,345
- For Sky Tower, the ERIRN exchange rate as at the transaction date, i.e. 4.7465,

applied

30 September 31 December

2022 2021

Work in progress 1,846,79: 1,516,27:
Finished products 79,363 32,797
Value adjustment for right of perpetual usufruct to land according to IFRS 16 76,07¢ 74,102
WriteDowns of Inventory (53,565 (53,572
Other inventory 158 34
Total inventories 1,948,82! 1,569,63.
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As at 30 September 2@&rowing costé PLN 71,921,000 (as at 31 December 2021 they amounted to PLN
54,361,000) were capitalised in the \akentdry

Changes in theitedowns of inventories were as follows:

Period of 9
months ended  Year ended 31
30 September December 2021

2022
At the beginning of the reporting period 53,572 115,96(
Increase - -
Used 7) (5,547,
Decrease - (56,841
At the end of theeporting period 53,565 53,572

As at 30 September 2022 and 31 December 2021, no item of inventory was pledged or mortgaged, excef
mortgage mentioneilém?2.30.5.

During the period of 9 months ended 30 September 2022, there were no significant changes in impairment |
financial assets, property, plant and equipiaiegihle assets, land classified as fixed assets and other assets,
except for writlewns of trade and other receivables, presented in the table below:

30 September 31 December

2022 2021
Trade receivables 9,646 10,684
State budgetceivables (without income tax) 3,220 57,061
SR:r(\:/cia(i:\i/r?;les arising from funds being blocked in security accounts, designated for ti 4,909 14,22¢
Other receivables from third parties 5,716 15,321
Total receivables (net) 23,491 97,28€
Adjustment taking account of deferred (income (1,597 (1,595
Valuation allowance for receivables (6,442 (6,078
Gross receivables 31,53C 104,95¢

As at 30 September 2022 and 31 December 2021, the Group recognised receivabtesaredquenaitiof and damages in the
amount of PLN 1,597,000 and PLN 1,595,000 respectively, net of deferred income resulting therefrom.

Trade receivables as at 30 September 2022 and 31 December 2021 with maturity below 1 year have been bre
down bynaturity dates and are as follows:

30 June 2022 31 December

2021
up to 1 month 9,646 10,684
between 1 and 3 months - -
between 3 and 12 months - -
Total current trade and other receivables 9,646 10,684

State budget receivables (without incohaé¢axjaturity up to 3 months.
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Receivables arising from funds blocked in security accounts, designated for timely loan servicing, have matur
months.

Period of 9
months ended  Year ended 31
30 September December 2021

2022
At thebeginning of the period 6,078 12,25C
Increase 1,695 702
Used (544) (1,740;
Decrease (787) (5,134
At the end of the period 6,442 6,078

The amounts of provisions and the reconciliation presenting the changes in their position during the reportil
are shown in the table below:

Retirement anc -
Provision for

disability . h
. Disputes and  disposal of
lE)eneflts and litigation investment Other Total

ereavement roperty

payment prop
As at 01 January 2022 449 3,028 7,306 1,441 12,224
Created - 49 - 3,961 4,010
Reclassification - (1,248 17,20¢ 1,248 17,20¢
Used - (95) (8,930 (596) (9,621,
Reversed - (74) (705) - (779)
As at 3GBeptember 2022, including: 449 1,660 14,88C 6,054 23,042
- noncurrent 449 81 13,58¢ - 14,11¢€
-current - 1,579 1,291 6,054 8,924
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Deferred income tax arises from the faltownsng

Deferred tax liability

Accrued interest atiscounts on borrowiny
bonds, notes and deposits

Valuation of investment property

Difference in the value of tangible asset:
and balanegheet depreciation)

Difference in the value of other assets (t
value and book value)

Other

Gross deferred tax liability

Deferred tax assets
Valuation of investment property

Provisions and prepayments and accrue
income

Accrued interest and discounts on borro
bonds and notes

Foreign exchange differences

Difference in the value of other assets (t
value and book value)

Losses potentially deductible from future
taxable income

Debt financing costs that can be settled
5years

Other
Gross deferred tax assets

Deferred tax expense

Net deferred tax asset

Net deferred tax liability

Considering the specificity of the conducted activity, which involves the achievement of taxable revenue at &
time, the Group activates incurred tax losses until taxable income is achieved, taking into account the tax re

concerning the gsibility of settling such losses. The amount of an asset resulting from tax losses disclos

Statement of financial position

30 September
2022

(15,411
(26,600

(6,499’

(2,958’
(397)

(51,865

3,112

8,517

2,079

17,764

1,797

137
33,40¢€

27,51C
(45,969

deferred tax is presented in the table above.

As at 30 September 2022, the Group carried out an analysis of the recoverability of a createdeahtbgotential de
asset and did not create a deferred tax asset on account, among other things, of tax losses in companies in tt

31 December

2021

(11,001

(55,767

(15,267
(319)

(82,444

18,513
4,594

7,864

6,295

5,305

1,797

194
44,562

10,052
(47,934
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01 January

2021

(9,148,

(48,390
(2,498
(32)

(60,068

18,644
4,021

6,472

6,786

8,883

2,306

267
47,37¢

21,932
(34,622

Deferred income tax expense 1
the period ended

30 September
2022

(4,320
(26,600

49,26€

12,30¢

(78)

(18,513
(1,482,

653

(4,216

12,45¢

(57)

19,422

31 December
2021

(1,943

(7,377

(12,769

(287)

(131)
573

1,392

(491)

(3,578

(509)

(73)

(25,193
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of PLN 5,696,000 (and accordingly PLN 3,191,000 as at 31 December 2021) and debt financing costs amc
PLN 5,139,000, iefhcan be used within the maximum period of up to five years from the end of the reporting |
in which they aroge addition, the Group did not create a deferred tax asset in the amount of PLN 28,851,00(
regard to temporary differences bdiveebalanegheet and tax values of respective assets and liabilities items
(and accordingly PLN 49,114,000 as at 31 December 2021).

During the period of 9 months ended 30 September 2022, the Group purchased property, plant and equipmel
PLN 806,000 (in the year ended 31 December 2021, it was PLN 1,506,000).

In the period of 9 months ended 30 September 2022, the Giiotp &lteasedagreement for 19 passenger cars.
The value of recognised-oigite assets was PLN 314,000.

In the period of 9 months ended 30 September 2022, the Group did not enter into any significant sale trar
regarding property, plant angragut items.

As at 30 September 2022, there are no significant contractual liabilities arising from the purchase of property
equipment.

As at 8 September 2022, there were no significant liabilities on account of the purchase of property, p
equipment.

Repayment 30 September 31 December

Interest rate date 2022 2021

Commercial bor(@sctoring Santander sp. z 0.0. WIBOR 1M+0.1% 03022022 - 19,852

Commercial bonds (mLeasing sp. z 0.0.) zerecoupon bonds 04022022 - 7,200

Treasury bonds (WZ1122) WIBOR 6M + 0% 22112022 10,24C

Commercial bonds (Factoring Santander sp.z. WIBOR 1M+0.1% 27012023 15,00(

Total shorterm securities 25,24C 27,055
. . . 31 Decembe _— Buyback /  Profit or loss 30 Septembe

Shortterm securitie® changes in the period 2021 Acquisition Redemption in the period 2022

Commercial bonds (Fact@amgander sp. z 0.0.) 19,85¢ - (19,921 68

Commercial bonds (mLeasing sp. z 0.0.) 7,200 7,170 (14,400 30 -

Treasury bonds (WZ1122) - 10,08¢ - 157 10,24C

Commercial bonds (Factoring Santander sp. z « - 15,00C - - 15,00C

TOTAL 27,058 32,25¢ (34,321 255 25,24C
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30 September 31 December

2022 2021
Investment fund units 26,01C 69,365
Cash in open trust accounts 94,097 49,174
Total other financial assets 120,107 118,53¢

The below table shows changespact of investment fund units in the period:

31 Buyback / Profit or 30

Investment fund units December Acquisition Redemotior Swap loss inthe September

2021 P period 2022
Subfundusz QUERCUS
(QUERCUS shtetm debt investment 9,048 10 (5,000 - (51) 4,007
compartment)
Subfundusz QUERCUS
(QUERCUS capital protection investment 5,997 12 (6,024, - 17 2
compartment)
Allianz Obligaciji Inflacyjnych (Allianz inflati \
indexed bonds) 2,007 - (2,065 - 58 -
Allianz Specjalistyczny FIO (Allianz specia
operend fund) / Allianz Trezor 2,930 ) ) ) 45 2,975
Allianz SFIO Stabilnego Dochodu (Allianz
income specialised eped fund) (formerly 4914 - - - 42 4,956
Aviva) .
Generali OszczndnosS \
fund) 4,940 - (4,802 - (138) -

GAMMA PARASOL BIZNES SFIO (GAMN

UMBRELLA BUSINESS SPECIALISEP O 34,60¢ - (25,000 - (288) 9,315
END FUND)

Allianz Specjalistyczny FIO (Allianz specia ) ) \ )
operend fund) / Allianz Trezor 4,926 (4.879, (“7)
Alllanz_Speqallstyczny FADiahz Obligaciji . . ) 4.879 (124) 4755
Inflacyjnych

TOTAL 69,365 22 (42,891 - (486) 26,01C

As at the balanskeet date, investment fund units are valued at a market price. The effects of increases or redt
in investment fund units valued at a market price (value) are presented as financial income or expenses res
Debt opeand ingstment fund units have no maturity dates and can be redeemed at any time.

The below table shows changes in respect of trust accounts in the period:

Period of 9
months ended  Year ended 31

Trust account§ changes 30 September December 2021

2022
At the beginning of the reporting period 49,174 32,85C
Customer payments in the period 712,44:% 928,03t
Funds released in the period (667,520 (911,711
At the end of the reporting period 94,097 49,174
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Cash in open trust accounts relates tgdnredsted in the process of selling and carrying out property developme
projects in accordance with the Property Development Law. An open trust account allows property devel
disburse received funds during the period of construction wdrkackestlaee disbursed according to a project
works schedule, namely, after the completion of consecutive construction stages.

30 September 31 December

2022 2021
Cash on hand and in a bank account 35,17¢€ 322,75¢
Banlkdeposits 228,44¢ 10,00C
Total cash and cash equivalents, including: 263,62¢ 332,75¢
-restricted cash 20 20

As at 30 September 2022, there are no significant proceedingsobefareatidtration or public administration
authorities with regard to liabilities or receivables of Develia S.A. or its subsidiaries, the value of which woulc
important bearing on the financial standing of the Group companies. Theestahsidjargfudevelia S.A. are
parties to court and public administration proceedings whose value is insignificant for their operations or
standing. The vast majority of other cases relate to claims lodged by subsidiaries of Deheliadgelfioegainst t
Provisions for legal actions are shown in Note 2.17.

During the period of 9 months ended 30 September 2022 there were no corrections of the errors of previous p

Considerable fluctuations in the EUR exchange rate translate into significant changes in the EUR valu
assets/equity and liabilities (i.e. commercial property and the loans financingiyentkdhintmePt.N at an
average exchange rate of NBP effective at the end of each accounting period. The situation on financial ma
also an impact on the valuation of IRS and CAP financial instruments disclosed in the Statement of Compr
Inmme.

The table below shows the sensitivity of a net financial result to possible fluctuations of the Euro exchange ra
value measurement of assets and loans valuations in EUR, on the assumption of the invariability of other fac
to the Igih volatility of Euro exchange rate in recent-\Rlaks020 variations have been taken into consideration
for the presentation of the sensitivity of the financial result..

. Impact on the net Impact on
Increase/decrease in tt ) . . ;
exchange rate in PLN financial result in ~ equity
PLN 600 in PLN 0
30 September 2022 +0.20 11,134 11,134
-0.20 (11,134 (11,134
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31 December 2021 +0.20 17,83t 17,83t
-0.20 (17,835 (17,835
30 September 2021 +0.20 18,27¢ 18,27¢
-0.20 (18,279 (18,279
Nosucheventsaccr ed i n any of the Groupb6s companies.

In the discussed reporting period neither the Issuer nor its subsidiary undertakings concluded with a related
transactions, which were effected on the terms ot

Transactions with related entities for the Group #ed pretsm 2.27.

30 September 2022

Receivables Liabilities to

. . Financial
Purchases fro  from related related Financial
Related undertaking Sales to relate related undertakings undertakings income EXpenses
undertakings ; ) (interest,
undertakings  (trade and (trade and (interest) discounts)
financial) financial)
Jointly Controlled Entities - - - - - -
Projekt MySlibors - - 1,443 - 55 -
Shareholders - - - - - -
Undertakings related through ) ) ) ) ) )
shareholders
Management and Supervisory Board
Management Board of parent undertal 7,887
and subsidiaries 56
Supervisory Board - 564 - - - -
Remuneration paid
Other
31 December 2021
Receivables Liabilities to : :
. . Financial
_ Sales to relate Purchases fro  from relqted relateq Emanmal expenses
Related undertaking ; related undertakings undertakings income ;
undertakings . . (interest,
undertakings  (trade and (trade and (interest) discounts)
financial) financial)
Shareholders - - - - - -
Undertakings related through ) ) ) ) ) )
shareholders
Management and Supervisory Board
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Management Boargafent undertaking 8,508
ey . - - 5 -

and subsidiaries 24
Supervisory Board - 729 - - -

Remuneration paid

Other
30 September 2021

Receivables Liabilities to

Sales to relate Purchases fro  from related related Financial

Relatedundertaking undertakinas related undertakings undertakings income
g undertakings  (trade and (trade and (interest)
financial) financial)
Shareholders - - - - -
Undertakings related through i i i i i
shareholders
Management and Supervisory Board
Management Board of parent undertat ) 6,897 . ) )
and subsidiaries 22
Supervisoioard - 543 - - -
Remuneration paid
Other purchases

Noneoccurred.
None occurred.

. Repayment 30 September

Noncurrent Entity Interest rate date 2022
Bank loan in EUR Ar kady Wr oc Euribor 3M+mar¢ 31122022 -
Bank loan in EUR Sky Tower S.A. Euribor 3M+mar¢ 15032022 -
LC Corp Invest XVII Sp. z
Bank loan in EUR Projekt 22 Sp. k. Euribor 3M+mar¢ 1911-2027 132,75¢
(Wola Retro)
Bank loan in PIiN Develi&.A. Wibor 1M+marg 01:122022 -
Bank loan in PN Develi&.A. Wibor 1M+marg 04112023 -
Bank loan in PIdN Develi&.A. WiboBM+margir 28042023 -
Bank loan in PIiN Develi&.A. Wibor 3M+marg 31:122022 -
Bank loan in PIUN Develi&.A. Wibor 1M+marg 12042022 -
Bond schemg Develis&s.A. Wibor 6M+marg 05062022 -
Bond scheme Develi&s.A. Wibo6M+margir 28022022 -
Bond scheme Develis&s.A. Wibor 3M+marg 19102022 -
DEVELIA
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Bond schenig Develi&.A. Wibor 3M+marg 22052023 - 59,81C
Bond schenig Develi&.A. Wibor 3M+marg 06102023 69,81¢€ 69,62E
Bond schemie Develi&.A. Wibor 3M+marg 10052024 149,37¢ 149,08t
Bond schenmie Develi&.A. Wibor 3M+marg 08102024 99,47¢ 99,21€
451,42t 497,85(
Current Entity Interest rate Repc)jz)t/énent 30 Szeopztgmber 31 th(a)gelmber
Bank loan in EUR Ar kady Wr oc Euribor 3M+mar¢ 31-122022 57,60& 58,24z
Bank loan in EUR Sky Tower S.A. Euribor 3M+mar¢ 15032022 - 191,137
LC Corp Invest XVII Sp. z
Bank loan in EUR Projekt 22 Sp. k. Euribor 3M+mar¢ 30092023 5,447 4,955
(Wola Retro)
Bank loan in PN Develi&s.A. Wibor 1IM+marg 01122022 - -
Bank loan in PN Develis.A. Wibor IM+marg 30092023 - -
Bank loan in PIIN Develiss.A. Wibor 3M+marg 28042023 - -
Bank loan in PLN Develis.A. WiboBM+margir 31122022 13,311 6,189
Bank loan in PIUN Develi&.A. Wibor 1M+marg 30092023 - -
Bond schemg Develi&.A. Wibor 6M+marg 05062022 - 50,154
Bond schemg Develi&.A. Wibor 6M+marg 28022022 - 18,707
Bond schemeg: Develi&.A. Wibor 3M+marg 19102022 20,42¢ 20,134
Bond schemz DevelisS.A. Wibor 3M+marg 22?;})%22%2223’ 60,58¢ 328
Bond schenig Develi&.A. Wibor 3M+marg 07102022 1,680 -
Bond schemie Develi&.A. Wibor 3M+marg 11:11-2022 2,013 912
Bond schemie Develi&.A. Wibor 3M+marg 08102022 2,235 -
163,30¢ 350,75¢
Loan at Arkady Wrocgrkebmm 068t wkéh ausyindi EBBReonD

S.A. and Santander Bank Polska S.A. On 29 December 2017, the Company and Santander Bank Pol
executed an amendment to the consortium krarragre28 February 2008 to extend the period of financing
granted under the loan agreement. The amount of loan granted under the said amendment is EUR 25,(
and the loan repayment date was fixed for 31 December 2022. Prior to enteriagaimantimeeaiboive.

on 27 December 2017, an amendment to the | oan
and | NG Bank $1 Nski S.A’. and Santander Bank Po
under whi ch | &8§gndl sorSantasder Bank Polska S.A. its receivables against the Compa

arising from the loan granted within the framework of a syndicate of banks, and Santander Bank Pols
accepted the said assignment becoming thus the sole lender. At,thlk thrommatitiements, rights and
claims (including the entire collateral), and all the risks and obligations relating to the loan were assi
Santander Bank Polska S. A. On 21 March naf 19, y
amount of EUR 5,000,000 to Santander Bank Polska S.A., which was granted under the consortiu
agreement of 28/ 02/ 2008, with further amendment
Bank Polska S.A. executed an amendmentsyadibate loan agreement of 28/02/2008 to revise the
committed amount and alter the repayment sched:u
Bank Polska S.A. executed an amendment to the loan agreement of 28 February 206&; including
modifications thereto, under which the payment of principal instalments originally due for payment on 3
2020 and 30 June 2020 was rescheduled on the date of final loan repayment, i.e. on 31 December 2022.
under the aforesaid amendthenBank decided to refrain from the verification of debt service ratios for the f
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two quarters of 2020. On 29 July 2020, Ar kady
amendment to the loan agreement of 28 February 2008yiitreudirglifications thereto, under which the
payment of principal instalments originally due for payment on 30 September 2020 and 31 December 2
rescheduled on 31 July 2020. Further, under the aforesaid amendment, the Bank decidéteto refrain f
verification of debt service ratios for Q3 and Q4 2020. On 31 July 2020, the principal in the amount
875,000 was paid off. On 27 August 2020, Arka
an amendment to the loan agreenghtebruary 2008, including further modifications thereto, under whic
the payment of certain principal instalments originally due for payment on 31 March 2021 and 30 June 2
rescheduled on or before 31 August 2020. The principal amount di BdRrépaj80n full on 31 August
2020. On 28 September 2020, Arkady WrocgawsKki
amendment to the loan agreement of 28 February 2008, including further modifications thereto, under w
payment of a gort of a principal instalment originally due for payment on 30 September 2021 was resche
on or before 30 September 2020. The principal amount of EUR 218,750 was repaid on 30 September 2
27 October 2020, Ar kady kPRéska&.4.&xecuted ad angndent tathedoars &
agreement of 28 February 2008, including further modifications thereto, under which the payment of a po
principal instalment originally due for payment on 31 December 2021 was reschedud@d@utairebefo
2020. The principal amount of EUR 218,750 was repaid on 30 October 2020. On 30 November 20
Company and Santander Bank Polska S.A. executed an amendment to the loan agreement of 28 Februe
including further modifications thameler, which the payment of a portion of a principal instalment originall
due for payment on 31 March 2021 was rescheduled on or before 30 November 2020. The principal ar
EUR 109,375 was repaid on 30 November 2020. On 28 December 2020 ,aitt Saontgoader Bank

Polska S.A. executed an amendment to the loan agreement of 28 February 2008, including further mod
thereto, under which the payment of a portion of principal instalments originally due for payment on 30 Se
2021, 31 Decear 2021 and 31 March 2022 were rescheduled on or before 31 December 2020. The pril
amount of EUR 328,125 was repaid on 29 December 2020. On 30 June 2021, the Company and Santan
Polska S.A. executed an amendment to the loan agreementaoy 20@&bincluding further modifications
thereto, under which the payment of a portion of a principal instalment originally due for payment on 31 D
2021 was rescheduled on or before 30 June 2021. The principal amount of EUR 109,31 Juag repaid on
20210n 23 November 2021, the Company and Santander Bank Polska S.A. executed an amendment
loan agreement of 28 February 2008, including further maodifications thereto, under which the payment of
of principal instalment origithadiyfor payment on 31 March 2022 was rescheduled. On 29 October 2021, t
principal in the of PLN 328,125 was paid off. On 08 June 2022, the Company and Santander Bank Pol:
executed an amendment to the loan agreement of 28 February 2008thercindidifcations thereto,

under which the Bank decided to refrain from the verification of WALT until the end of Q3 2022. On 30 Ju
the principal in the amount of PLN 875,000 was paid off. On 28 September 2022, the Company and S
Bank Pska S.A. executed an amendment to the loan agreement of 28 February 2008, including fi
modifications thereto, under which the Bank decided to refrain from the verification of WALT until the er
2022.

The loan at Sky Tower S.A. taken out inrEuddipto the agreement 8fe2@mbe2012 concluded with a
syndicate of banks Getin Noble Bank S.A. and Alior Bank S.A., including further amendments thereto. F
the disposal of the Sky Tower building on 15 March 2022, the loan was repaid.

The lan at LC Corp Invest XVII Sp. z 0.0. Projekt 22 Sp. k. taken out pursuant to the agreement of 20 De
2017 with a syndicate of banks: mBank Hipoteczny S.A. and mBank S.A. up to the amount of EUR 34,18
the partial financing of Wola RetrosavwvV@n 28 October 2020, LC Corp Invest XVII Sp. z 0.0. Projekt 22 Sy
k. entered into a loan agreement with mBank S.A. covering the amount of up to EUR 34,187,000, des
among other things, for the repayment of existing debt owed to mBaBai¥kAdipoteczany S.A. and
arising from a loan agreement of 20/12/2017, as amended, and for the financing and refinancing of cost:
to the construction of an office building call:
of aconstruction loan being converted to an investment loan and previous lenders being replaced by
(mBank Hipoteczny S.A. and mBank S.A. have been replaced withmddenleiglar). On 29 March 2021,

LC Corp Invest XVII Sp. z 0.0. Projekt 2n&gpe lan amendment to the 28 October 2020 loan agreement,
which changed the loan availability period from 28 April 2021 to 30 September 2021. The other provisio
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amendment set out new terms and conditions of loan utilisation and the teions amdezowtiich
transactions hedging against interest rate risk could be entered into. On 31 May 2021, LC Corp Invest X
0.0. Projekt 22 Sp. k. made an amendment to the 28 October 2020 loan agreement, under which the
modified the termswvamich transactions hedging against interest rate risk may be entered into, shortening
minimum term of such transactions from five to two years, with obligation to renew an overdue transa
another twyear or longer period. On 27 SeptemhdrQ@2irp Invest XVII Sp. z 0.0. Projekt 22 Sp. k. made
an amendment to the 28 October 2020 loan agreement, which postponed the loan availability period
September 2021 to 31 March Q0227 March 2022, LC Corp Invest XVII Sp. z 0.0. ProjekhadeSan
amendment to the 28 October 2020 loan agreement, which postponed the loan availability period from 3
2022 to 30 June 2022. On 24 June 2022, LC Corp Invest XVII Sp. z 0.0. Projekt 22 Sp. k. made an amen
the 28 October 2020 logreement, which postponed the loan availability period from 30 June 2022 to
December 2022.

A loan in the amount of PLN 35,000,000 granted by mBank S.A. to Develia S.A. under a revolving loan ag
of 03 December 2020, designated for finantmbalgy c ompany és operations.
been agreed at 1 December @022. April 2021, Develia S.A. and mBank S.A. made an amendment to
revolving loan agreement of 3 December 2020, under which the loan repayment securitgdistdyas supple
enabling the company to utilise the full amount of loan up to the amount of PLN 35,000,000. As at the dat
no loan disbursement was made.

A loan of up to PLN 36,270,000 under a loan agreement entered into between Develia SBardnd Santanc
Polska S.A. on 04 March 2021, designated for the financing or refinancing of costs relating to the constru
property devel opment project called APrestovia
made with Santander Bankd@8Igk was closed prior to the contractual date, as the consequence of which
obligations arising from the above agreement were extinguished.

A loan of PLN 20,000,000 granted to Develia S.A. under an overdraft facility agreement made with Pow
Kag OszczfndnoSci Bank Polski S.A. on 29 Apri/l
operations carried on, including the costs of projects being implemented (including purchase of land). T
repayment date has been agree®l Aprl 2022. On 27 April 2022, Develia S.A. and PKO BP S.A. madk
Amendment no. 1 to the 29 April 2021 overdraft facility agreement, pursuant to which the lending per
extended to 28/04/2023, the amount borrowed was increased to PLN 50,0fific@fiorentbrtite loan
repayment security were made. On 03 August 2022, Develia S.A. and PKO BP S.A. made Amendment
the 29 April 2021 overdraft facility agreement, pursuant to which modifications to the loan repayment
were made. On 09v/Blmber 2022, Develia S.A. and PKO BP S.A. made Amendment no. 3 to the 29 April .
overdraft facility agreement, pursuant to which provisions concerning financial pledge and registered plec
updated. As at the date hereof, no loan disbursensatg.was m

A loan of up to PLN 33,700,000 under a loan agreement entered into between Develia S.A. and Bank |

Srodowi ska S. A. on 11 August 2021, designated
construction of a property developmenf e c t called AKaskady R-Uanki
Develia S.A. and Bank Ochrony $rodowi srkvalving. A.

loan agreement, pursuant to which the loan utilisation period and repaymert meglifeed,yasevell as

the terms and conditions relating to the Borrov
A loan of up to PLN 30,000,000 under a loan agreement entered into between Develia S.A. and Santan
Polska S.A. on 12 April 2022, designatedi&ytdiday financing of property development activity. The final
repayment date has been agreed at 12 April 2024. On 11 October 2022, Develia S.A. and Santander Bar
S.A. made Amendment no. 1 to the 12 April 2022 loan agreement, purheaptdwvisibichgertaining to
certain definitions were clarified and modifications to the loan transaction security were made. As at t
hereof, no loan disbursement was made.

Coupon bonds the issue of 5 December 2017, including 50.0€ér fireseced coupon bonds of
PLN1,000 each and a total nominal value of PLN 50,000,000 under a Bond Issue Agreement with the red
date set at 5 June 2022 concluded with the banks Pekao S.A., having its registered office in Warsaw, an
S.A., having itegistered office in Warsaw.On 31 March 2022, Develia S.A. partially redeemed bonds of
19,000,000 before the bond maturity date. The value of obligations still outstanding and to be redeeme
June 2022 equals PLN 31,000,000. On 03 June @23, Meeeleemed the bonds.
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Coupon bonds the issue of 28 February 2018, including 45;96@ar fansecured coupon bonds of
PLN1,000 each and a total nominal value of PLN 45,000,000 under a Bond Issue Agreement with the red
date set at Z8=bruary 2022 concluded with the banks Pekao S.A., having its registered office in Warsav
mBank S.A., having its registered office in War@dwecember 2021, Develia S.A. bought back 26,504
bonds before the bond maturity date for the puhgiseedemption. On 28 February 2022, Develia S.A.
redeemed the bonds.

Coupon bondghe issue of 19 October 2018, including 66;0&4x fansecured coupon bonds, having a par
value of PLNOOO each and a total nominal value of PLN 66,000,080nuhdsswee Agreement with the
redemption date set at 19 October 2022 concluded with mBank S.A. having its registered office in Wars
Company received calls for early redemption in the total amount of PLN 46,000,000 and on 20 July
redeemed thHmonds before their maturity date in the amount of PLN 46,000,000. The value of obligatior
outstanding and to be redeemed on 19 October 2022 equals PLN 20,000,000.

Coupon bondsthe issue of 22 May 2019, including 60,8@&arfaursecured coupamds of PLINOOO

each and a total nominal value of PLN 60,000,000 under a Bond Issue Agreement with the redemption d:
22 May 2023 concluded with mBank S.A., having its registered office in Warsaw.

Coupon bondghe issue of 7 October 2020dingl 70,000 thagear unsecured coupon bonds of PLN 1,000
each and a total nominal value of PLN 70,000,000 under a Bond Issue Agreement with the redemption d:
6 October 2023 concluded with mBank S.A., having its registered office in Warsaw.

Coupn bonds the issue of 11 May 2021, including 150,098ahteesecured coupon bonds of PLN 1,000
each and a total nominal value of PLN 150,000,000 under a Bond Issue Agreement with the redemption
at 10 May 2024 concluded with mBank Shé ithesgistered office in Warsaw.

Coupon bondsthe issue of 08 October 2021, including 100,8@athuasecured coupon bonds of PLN
1,000 each and a total nominal value of PLN 100,000,000 under a Bond Issue Agreement with the red
date set &8 October 2024 concluded with mBank S.A., having its registered office in Warsaw.

The allocation of respective loans, bonds to operating segments is presented in item 2.31.

In the period of 9 months ended 30 September 2022 and in 2022, théntmekmapeaseif bonds was 7.44%
and 3.56% respectively.

In the period of 9 months ended 30 September 2022 and in 2021, the average weighted interest of loans wi
and 3.18% respectively.

The below table shows loan and bond liabilities, brakém ™atumity dates (the sums presented below do not
include valuations made as at the bsti@etalate):

<1 13 312 12 23 34 45
month  months months  years years years years >5years  Total
Bonds (floating interest) 24,37¢ 2,745 60,00C 220,000 100,00C - - - 407,12¢
Bank loan in EUR (EURIBOR) - 57,52t - - - - - - 57,52t
Bank loan in EUR (EURIBOR) - -
Bank loan in EUR (EURIBOR) - 1,349 4,099 5,586 5,727 5,872 6,021 109,45¢ 138,10¢
Bank loan in PLN (WIBOR) - - - - -
BanKoan in PLN (WIBOR) - - 13,311 - - - - - 13,311

24,37¢ 61,61¢ 77,41C 225,58t 105,727 5,872 6,021 109,45¢ 616,06¢
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As at 30 September 2022, the fair value measurlRSrasofvell as CAP/FLOOR and forward transactions
hedging the risk of an interest rate was as follows:

Transaction Balancesheet (fair) value of Transaction period

principal for instruments
currency [in Financial Financial From To
6000] Assets Liabilities
CAP option [EUR] 13,311 870 - 07/06/202 26/06/202
CAP option [EUR] 578 39 - 27/01/202 26/06/202
CAP/FLOOR contract [EUR] 10,937 - 29/03/201 30/12/202
As at 30 September 2022, TOTAL 909

On 27 January 2022, LC Corp Invest XVII Sp. z 0.0. Projekt 22 Sp. k., in pursuance of the 28 October 2
agreement in relation to forward rate and derivative tranadetiarisansaction (a cap option) hedging against
interest rate risk in the amount of EUR 577,600 for the period from 25 January 2022 to 26 June 2023.

On 28 March 2022, the Company entered into, pursuant to a framework agreement of 8 Felgnary 2018,
exchange forward transaction which included forward and derivative operations relating to the performance
agreement and extended the settlement period of the unsettled transaction to its maturity, i.e. 30 June 202
settlement date was #r the unsettled amount of PLN 6,572,000, namely, 30 June 2022. The nominal value
aforesaid transaction at a base rate amounted to EUR 1,470,000.

On 27 June 2022, the Company entered into, pursuant to a framework agreement of 8 Fakigary 2018, ¢
exchange forward transaction which included forward and derivative operations relating to the performance
agreement and extended the settlement period of the unsettled transaction to its maturity, i.e. 30 June 202
settlement dateas set for the unsettled amount of PLN 1,737,000, namely, 30 December 2022. The transactic
settled in full on 23 August 2022.

On 18 August 2022, the Company entered into, pursuant to a framework agreement of 8 February 2018,
exchange formdatransaction which included forward and derivative operations relating to the performance of
agreement and set the settlement period of the transaction to its maturity, i.e. 23 August 2022. The nomina
the aforesaid transaction at arbés@mounted to EUR 534,000. The transaction was settled in full on 23 Augl
2022.

In the period of 9 months ended 30 September 2022, no bonds were issued.
On 28 February 2022, Develia S.A. redeemed the bonds of PLN 18,496,000.

On 31 March 2022, Develia S.A. partially redeemed bonds of PLN 19,000,000 before the bond maturity date.
of obligations still outstanding and to be redeemed on 05eduadsZRN 31,000,000. On 5 June 2022, Develia
S.A. redeemed the bonds of PLN 31,000,000.
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1.1n the period of 9 months ended 30 September 20
the instalments of the loan in EUR taken out with Santander Bank Polska S.A. in the amount of PLN 3,14
at 30 September 2022, the total outstanding amount after conversion into Polish Zlotys was PLN 57,605,0C

2. In the period of 9 months endedpién8eer 2022, Sky Tower repaid the loan taken out in EUR to a syndicate
banks: Getin Noble Bank S.A. and Alior Bank S.A. in the amount of PLN 197,242,000.

3.1 n t he period of 9 mont hs ended 30 September
odpoidzi al noSci N Projekt 22 Sp. k., in accordanc
taken out in EUR and designated for the partial financing of Wola Retro project in Warsaw, drew down fur
amount of PLN 9,044,000 and repaidskadments in the amount of PLN 3,628,000. As at 30 September 202:
the total outstanding amount after conversion into Polish Zlotys was PLN 138,202,000.

4. In the period of 9 months ended 30 September 2022, Develia S.A., as stipulated in arlade agfeement
Santander Bank Polska S.A., under which a loan was provided for the financing or refinancing of costs re
the construction of a property devel opment pr oj
amount of PLN 84,080 at 30 September 2022, there was no debt in respect of the aforesaid agreement.

5. In the period of 9 months ended 30 September 2022, Develia S.A. drew down funds in the total amount 9
in accordance with an agr eaSre under whizhdadoanwas provided flork
the financing or refinancing of costs relating
R-Uanki o in Wrocgaw. As at 30 Sept e mbRolish Z2of 2, t
was PLN 13,311.

As at 30 September 2022, the following main collateral, categorised into below groups, was used as securi
repayment of loans.

1. Security for the revolving loan agmeef8 December 2020 made between Develia S.A. and mBank S.A.;

- PLGFGP guarantee granted by Bank Gospodarstwa Krajowego for the amount of PLN 28,000,000, |
guarantee amount comprised of 80% of the Loan for the period from the date piswihace a0 drer
BGK register to 01 March 2023;

- Contractual mortgage of up to PLN 52,500,000 on the real property which Develia S.A. and subsidia
Corp Invest XV Sp. z 0.0. Investments S.K.A. and LC Corp Invest XV Sp. z 0.0. Projekd7 sp. k. ow
which they hold the right of perpetual usufruct;

- The Companyb6s declaration on voluntary submis
Article 777(1)(5) of the Code of Civil Procedure;

- Declarations of LC Corp Invest XV Spnzestments S.K.A. and LC Corp Invest XV Sp. z 0.0. Projekt 7
sp. k. on voluntary submission to enforcement in relation to the mortgaged real properties pursuant t
777(1)(6) of the Code of Civil Procedure;

2. Security for the revolving loan agreeimemarch 2021 made between Develia S.A. and Santander Bank

Polska S.A;
- Mortgage of up to PLN 54,405,000 on the right of perpetual usufruct to real estate located in Warsaw
Jagiell oE&ka street;

- A declaration in the form of a notarial desdndary submission to enforcement in favour of Santander
Bank Polska SA pursuant to Article 777(1)(5) of the Code of Civil Procedure, for a sum of up t
54,405,000;
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- Registered pledges up to the highest sum of security in the amount of PahdS#h4086iaDpledges
on accounts receivable from bank accounts relating to the project in question, however, as regards a
receivable from the trust account, only a registered pledge will be established;

- A hold placed on bank accounts relatengrimjebt (except for the trust account);

- An assignment agreement signed as security for cash receivables arising from the Project in question;

- A power of attorney granted to the bank in respect of the bank accounts and to place a hold on bank &
inthe cases stipulated in the loan agreement

3. Security for the revolving loan agreement of 29 April 2021 made between Develia S.A. and Powszech

OszczndnoSci Bank Pol ski S. A.;

- Joint mortgage of up to PLN 75,000,000 on the real properties whighddeveltaGrp Invest XV
Sp-gka z ogranickzownd&storderotws e Sakdyjdakomrods  widiah thgyt o w
hold the right of perpetual usufruct;

- A declaration in the form of a notarial deed on voluntary submission to enfarcemeRKOnBRveA
pursuant to Article 777(1)(5) of the Code of Civil Procedure, for a sum of up to PLN 75,000,000;

- A financial and registered pledge up to the highest sum of security amounting to PLN 75,000,000 c
deposited in the current account;

4. Secuity for the naevolving loan agreement of 11 August 2021 made between Develia S.A. and Bank Oct

Srodowi ska S. A.;

- Mortgage of wup to PLN 50,550,000 on real prop
Land and Mortgage RegistekMR1K/00091989/0, along with an assignment from insurance policy wil
coverage for construction risks, and following the completion of the Project along with an assignmen
real property insurance policy;

- A declaration on voluntary submission temafdrpursuant to Article 777(1)(5) of the Code of Civil
Procedure for a sum of up to PLN 50,550,000;

- Financial pledge up to the highest sum of security in the amount of PLN 50,550,000 on rights tc

deposited in the borBawkr ®shaoopultsesdmai skai f
provision;
- Power of attorney granted to a bank by the Cc
accounts;

- Assignment of receivables arising from a contract made with the genefaheopiogetd;

- A hold placed on bank accounts relating to the project (except for the trust account);

- Transfer of copyrights for all forms of explo
onsite supervision services fopribject under a condition precedent of entry into force should the Loa
Agreement be terminated by the Bank.

5. Security for the revolving loan agreement of 12 April 2022 made between Develia S.A. and Santand
Polska.
- Mortgage up to PLN 45,000,00@ oeal properties which Develia S.A. owns or to which it holds the right «
perpetual usufruct;
- A declaration on voluntary submission to enforcement of up to PLN 45,000,000 pursuant to Article 777
the Code of Civil Procedure;
- Financial armdgistered pledge up to the highest sum of security in the amount of PLN 45,000,000 on rig

cash deposited in the borrowerés accounts mai |
- Power of attorney granted to a bank by the Company to drawddevenacash t ed i n t he
accounts;
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1.Security for the bank | oan agreement concluded

Capped mortgage (loan in EWR)to the amount of EUR 37,500,000;

Pledgen t he shares of Ar kadyiWtodhe graowsBUR 87,5@),000; h ¢
Registered pledge on bank accounts (loaniimfEtdRhe amount of EUR 37,500,000;

Assignment of rights arising from rental agreements, insuranaatessl yhdar agreements with
contractors;

Declaration on submission to enforcement pursuant to Article 777 of the Code of Civil Procedure witt
to 113,700,000 ordinary registered shares held by.Devklanominal value of PLN 1.00, each being
part of the share capital of Arkady Wrocgawsk
registered pledge agreement, on shares as security for the repayment of secured debt;

Deposit of EUR 500,000.

2. Security for transactions hedgmigst interest rate risk (COLLAR) (hedging agreement), established by Arkad
Wrocgdgawskie S. A.:

Contractual mortgage of up to PLN 8,250,000;
Declarations on submission to enforcement pursuant to Article 777 of the Code of Civil Procedure u
total anount of PLN 8,250,000;

3. Security for the bank loan agreement signed by LC CorpSpuesio®fjek2Sp.k. in favour of mBank
S.A.

Contractual mortgage on real property of up to EUR 51,280,500.00;

A subordination agreement concluded by thehoe r |, the | ssuer and | ssu
Invest | Sp. z 0.0. and LC Corp Invest XVII Sp. z 0.0.) as subordinate creditors along wih the borrov
the senior creditor, providing for an assignment as security for all submrdinated debt

Agreements to assign rights and debts arising from lease and other contracts associated with the proje
Firstranking registered pledges on the rights and debts owed to the limited partner and the general pa
the borrower 0ss aeatadpraralation tovihe trefinangdd elebigbeing senior to all othel
pledges), each up to the amount of EUR 51,280,500 along with a declaration on submission to enfol
pursuant to Article 777(1)(6) of the Code of Civil Procedure;

Firstranking redeyed and financial pledge on all bank accounts of the borrower (with pledges create
relation to the refinanced debt being senior to all other pledges), each up to EUR 51,280,500 alot
powers of attorney for the lender;

Borr ower 0s subrmissibnato enforcemens towards the lender pursuant to Article 777(1) of t
Code of Civil Procedure up to EUR 51,280,500.00;

Debt service reserve in the amount of three principal and interest instalments,

A support agreement concluded with the rederewhich the Issuer undertook, among other things, to
provide financial support to the borrower, including to provide Debt Service Reserve and replenish it
been drawn on, along with the | sstiovardstheldnder | ar
in relation to the Support Agreement up to EUR 560,000.00 pursuant to Article 777(1)(5) of the Code
Procedure;

4. Security for transactions hedging against foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk (hedging agreements)
estabshed by LCorp Invest XVII Sp. z 0.0. Projekt 22 Sp.k. pursuant to the framework agreement as securi
the loan agreement in favour of mBank S.A.:

FX risk and interest rate risk hedging agreement, secured by a mortgage of up to PLN 32,235,000 (1
junior directly to mortgage used as security for the agreement) on the real property.

Registered pledges on the rights to cash in all bank accounts of the Borrower up to the highest sum of
in the amount of PLN 32,235,000 in favour of mBank S.A

Declarations on submission to enforcement pursuaritiickefalié of the Code of Civil Procedure of up

to PLN 32,235,000.
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30 September

QR for 3Q 2022

31 December

2022 2021
Liabilities arising from the right of perpetual usufruct to land 93,872 92,137
Liabilities on account of car leases 733 631
Total 94,60€ 92,76€

The below tables shows discounted lease payments as at 30 September 2022, broken down into maturity per

30 September

31 December

2022 2021

up to 1 month 28 21
between 1 and 3 months 54 4,419
between 3 and 12 months 5,735 198
between 1 year and 2 years 6,064 5,379
between 2 and 3 years 5,548 5,534
between 3 and 4 years 5,165 5,125
between 4 and 5 years 4,754 4,754
above 5 years 67,25€ 67,33€
Total 94,60€ 92,76€

30 September 31 December

2022 2021

Trade payables 157,01¢ 205,37¢
Budget liabilities (without income tax) 4,427 4,418
Liabilities on account of security deposits 28,95E 35,52¢
Liabilities on accourdieidend - -
Other payables 557 503
TOTAL, including: 190,957 245,82¢
- noncurrent - -
-current 190,957 245,82¢

Budget liabilities concern mainly personal income tax, the Social Insurance Institution (ZA#8),t8€6.and civil
Budgeliabilities are settled at statutory dates.

Liabilities on account of security deposits pertain mainly to sums withheld in connection with the constrt
property development projects and sums paid for the reservation of residential prehssingp gatgects
built by the Group.

DEVELIA

WCZESNIEJ LC CORP

44



Develia S.A. Group QR for 3Q 2022
CONSOLIDATED QUARTERLY REPORT

As at 30 September 2022, trade payables broken down by maturity dates and with maturity below 1 yea
follows:

<1 month 1-3 months 312 months Total below 1 yea

Trade payables 93,75¢ 23,25¢ 40,00C 157,01¢

30 September 31 December

2022 2021
Accrued expenses on account of salaries and wages 4,987 9,983
Accrued expenses on account of holidays not taken 1,435 1,504
Accrued expenses on account of addaionehts for perpetual usufruct - -
Accrued expenses on account of the audit of financial statements 14 316
Other 701 3,405
Accrued expenses 7,137 15,20¢
Accrued rental revenues 1,442 1,441
Accrued revenues from the sale of flats 964,64¢ 561,451
Other deferred income 32 -
Deferred income 966,12( 562,892
Accrued expenses and deferred income 973,251 578,10(

The Group aims to maintain a balance between the continuity and flexibility of financing by means of using
sources of financing such as bank loans and bonds. The Group has its own funds which are uged for securir
day operations and ormggiroperty development projects, however, it is required to obtain further financing thr
taking out bank loans or issuing bonds to expand the business. When setting repayment dates of furtt
instalments, the Company strives to make sureoitetds ffrom the sales of individual projects are already
available.

The Groupds Iiicaphuandicurtent finangial assets gnsuyedthe dervicing of current financial liabili
in a timely fashion. The-qwrent portion of liabilitielsides mainly loans designeditarre¢ the investment
property.ThéeVephyammenRoe dcomnoetcial loans is secured by proceeds from the operations carried ¢
the investment properties (on account of lease agreements). Revenue from the sale of residential premise
projects in Warsaw, alnic g sowce foCtheaepayment ofthdndsds the finamaihg o
the Groupods residential segment

A maturity analysis of financial assets and liabilities is presented in individual notes to the consolidated
statements relating to those casgo
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The table below shows the balance sheet values of all financial instruments of the Group in a breakdown by r
categories of assets and equity and liabilities, pursuant to IFRS 9:

30 September 31 December

2022 2021

Assets measured at amortised cost 405,96( 451,782
NonCurrent Receivables 2,727 2,576
Trade and other receivablesaf budget receivables 20,271 40,22¢
Treasury / commercial bonds 25,24C 27,052
Cash in open trust accounts 94,097 49,174
Bankdeposits over 3 months - -

Cash and other cash assets 263,62¢ 332,75¢
Assets measured at fair value through profit or loss 26,01C 69,365
Fair Value of Financial Instruments in the Form of Forward Contracts - -

Operended debt fund units 26,01C 69,365
Hedging Financial Instruments 909 49
Fair value of IRS and CAP financial instruments 909 49
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 895,86¢ 1,182,78!
Bank loan liabilities 209,11¢ 380,63¢
Bond liabilities 405,61¢ 467,971
Leasdiabilities 94,60€ 92,76€
Trade and other payabies ¢f budget liabiljties 186,53( 241,411
Liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss - 301
Fair Value of Financial Instruments in the Form of Forward Contracts - 301
Hedging Financiahstruments - 435
Fair value of IRS and CAP financial instruments - 435

The below table contains a comparison ofdfsatealues and fair values of individual financial instruments:

30 September 2022 Fair value hierarchy

sr?eael?cgleue Fairvalue Levell Level2 Level3
Assets measured at amortised cost 385,68¢ 385,68¢ 10,23 375,45¢ -
NonCurrent Receivables 2,727 2,727 - 2,727 -
Treasury / commercial bonds 25,24C 25,24C 10,23z 15,007 -
Cash in open trust accounts 94,097 94,097 - 94,097 -
Bank deposits over 3 months - - - - -
Cash and other cash assets 263,62¢ 263,62 - 263,62 -
Assets measured at fair value through profit or loss 26,01C 26,01C - 26,01C -
Fair Value of Financial Instruments in the Form of Forward Ci - -
Operended debt fund units 26,01C 26,01C - 26,01C -
Hedging Financial Instruments 909 909 - 909 -
Fair value of IRS and CAP financial instruments 909 909 - 909 -
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 614,73: 612,81¢ 223,70¢ 389,11: -
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Bank loan liabilities 209,11¢ 205,81( - 205,81(
Bond liabilities 405,61¢ 407,00¢ 223,70¢ 183,30¢

Liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss

Fair Value of Financial Instruments in the Form of 6omaatsl
Hedging Financial Instruments
Fair value of IRS and CAP financial instruments

IFRS 13 defines the following levels of hierarchy:
- Level 1 quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
- Level 2 valuation techniques for which inputs are directly or indirectly observable;
- Level 3 valuation techniques for which inputs are unobservable.

Comparedotthe previous reporting period, the Group did not change the classification and valuation me
employed to financial instruments. In the reporting period, there were no movements in the levels of fe
hierarchy.

On 17 May 2022, the Ordinary General Meeting of Develia S.A. adopted a resolution on the payment of divide
following principles:

a) Amount of dividend: RDN,401,239.95

b) Amount of dividend per share: PLN 0.45

¢) Number of shares subject to dividend: 447,558,311 shares

d) Record date: 24 May 2022

e) Dividend payment date: 31 May 2022

Pursuant to the said resolution, Develia S.A. paid the dividend on 31 May 2022.

The Issuer monitors, on aadsy basis, developments relating to the impact of-@eVaAfRElemic on the
Groupbs operations, takinggnsegoendeons designed t o mi
In the previous years, the CO¥Epidemic led to a delay in the process of issuing administrative decisions, ¢
decisions on building permit, which stemmed from the fact that time limits for administrative authorities to ¢
decisins were suspended and the working behaviour of offices changed on account edrtine epide e
COVIL9 epidemic had a considerable impact on the
in revenues and cash flows gedetsy commercial buildings, especially those having a significant share
commercial floor spatieese changes resulted in a lower value of investment real property in2@2jears 2020
The situation caused by the introduction of the statei@tiebid®nexert any significant impact on revenue and
profit (or loss) made in the period of 9 months ended 30 Septdimb&Q@JHD pandemic is still considered

an important risk factor. A sharp rise in the number of infections andgimesiimpestéd as a consequence of
that may affect the Groupdbs operations. The Mana
effects of the epidemic on the Group in subsequent months.
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The risk factors that mi ght adversely affect t h
Federation in Ukraine and related undesirable economic effects with global implications. The potential areas c
can be identified atnfr@ment with respect to the construction and property development industry in which the (
operates are as follows:

- A possible decline in demand on the housing mal
the present economic poidical situation may unfold;

- A dramatic rise in the prices of key raw materials, which increases the prices of goods of key relevanc
economy, including the prices of construction works, services, equipment and materials;

- Limited availabilitcohstruction materials, equipment, services and the interruption or disruption of continu
supplies;

- Limited availability of employees from Ukraine, which results from the fact that reservists were called u
army, whereas others decidedita tettheir country in order to engage in the warfare;

- Interest rate rises and a risk of further increase thereof;

- The financial standing of borrowers, including their worse creditworthiness , as well as a credit policy pu
banks, whichisrefleed i n t he Polish Financi al Supervisio
2022, and consequently, limited availability of loans for residential purposes;

- Availability and cost of debt financing resulting from limited demand on the bond market

The above factors may have a direct impact on the timely and correct performance of contracts entered in
Group, and in particular, contracts under which construction projects are to be carried out, which stems fron
that meeting completdates for individual projects may prove to be difficult and project costs may rise conside
as wel|l as they may result in reduced demand for
Due to the war in Ukraine and record drigst irates in the period of 9 months ended 30 September 2022, &
significant drop in demand for flats was reported. This applies mainly to customers relying on mortgage loans
their purchases. Hi gher i npuechasirg tapacity angl mcreasedcsedittcests.a |
As the current purchasing structure shows, flats are most often bought through payments made in cash.

The decline in sales affects the iridirstgsponse to the falling demand, property develepeisrayesupply,
refraining from the commencement of new projects. High inflation and material prices, which continue to gro
are also an impediment to the commencement of new projects. It is a common practice that currently
contracting ciwacts contain a price indexation clause. Consequently, property developers are not able to asse
final project profitability, leading to the suspension of many projects. According to data presented by the
Statistical Office of Poland (GUSgndy the number of constructions started is almost 30% smaller than in t
preceding year.

Given the foregoing changes in the market environment, the Management Board of Develia S.A. have de
adjust the sales plan, withhold or postpone tiueticomsf some projects and change current supply to meet
demand. For some of projects-salpe phase has been initiated, meaning that only reservation agreements &
signed. The final decision as to whether construction works are to be caotnwaticed tmken when a
satisfactory psales level and an acceptable level of general contracting costs are achieved.

Due to high market volatility and uncertainty over the conflict situation in Ukraine and its economic effects on
Poland, thélanagement Board are incapable of assessing the impact of the conflict on future perform
nevertheless, no circumstances were identified by the Board, which would imply any threats to the continuat
Group compani es 0 pamentBoard monitarcon anvongbiyg.basis, the pofdratial enpact of th
conflict on the Groupbs operations, the property
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After the balansbeet date, i.e. after 30 September 2022, no significant events which have not been revealed
and might have a major impact on financial results presented heexwvedeNewvbrtheless, there were other
events:

1)
2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

On 19 October 2022, Develia S.A. redeemed the bonds of PLN 20,000,000.

On 24 October 2022, the Issuer, Hillwood Malin Development Logistics, LLC, based in City of Wilr
( Hillwoodl and Buncloditon ve st ments sp-gka z ograni ¢JEosN odp
companies from the group of companies the part of which is Hillwood Polska Sp. z 0.0., based in War
fPartner® Jnade a coperation agreement to carry out a {mgéglser using one or more joint ventures on a
real property |l ocated i fiVAdradmanhe cfiermtiomunder tidalg a M
Agreement will entail setting up one or more investment companies with a view te Ipaitétifceatieyisti
along with necessary technical and road infrastru@tg@hEhe Project will derive from the experience

of the Issuer and Hillwood, and responsibility for operational management will rest with the Hillwood te
Issued cormitment has been set at 25%, whereas 8liivéb%. Under the basic scenario, the total capital
commitment of the Issuer is estimated to be approx. EUR 8,700,000 and will be completely financed by s
real property to the JV company. At éhthdidV Agreement was signed, the owner of the real property
designated for the Project was an@ssuissidiary, from which the real property will be acquired in stages
depending on the progress of works for the Project. According ® désérasssieif the Project is
completed as originally envisaged, revenue from the disposal of the whole real property will be apprc
34,700,00, which exceeds the current value of the real property recognised i@ theoksbamiae)y

approx. PLN 200,000. The commencement of the Project is conditional on changing the purpose of the
property, which is necessary in order for the Project to serve functions relating to the provision of service
the JV Agreement, the Partners committedvietosvork together to obtain necessary decisions, as well as
to collaborate on the construction and commercialisation of the Project. The JV Agreement was entered ir
the following conditions precedent: 1) to obtain the consent of tled B@Ki#e(the Polish Office of
Competition and Consumer Protection) to concentration that involves the creation of a joint venture by tt
and Hillwood Malin Development Logistics, LLC and 2) to af@entdie d¥/association and have that
amendment entered in the register of entrepreneurs of the National Court Register. The other tern
conditions of the JV Agreement, including those relating to joint venture, do not vary from provisions w

generally applicable to this type ofmegtse

On 26 October 2022, the Polish Financial Supervisionkantigjatiddzoru Finansowagproved the

base prospectus of the CondpBoplic Bond Issue Scheme prepared in relation to the public offering and t
application for admissiontotnagd on t he Catalyst regul ated mar ke
w Warszawie S.A. (Warsaw Stock Exchange) of bearer bonds having the total nominal value not higher t
150,000,000.

On 02 November 2022, LC Corp Invest XV sp. z ed.ofiapdbe shares it had in LC Corp Invest Ill sp. z
0.0. to LC Corp Service S.A., which on the said day became a shareholder in that company.

On 7 November 2022, a company called Flatte Sp. z 0.0., having its registered office in Warsaw and tf
capital of PLN 5,000, was registered in the National Court Register (KRS). The sole shareholder of the ¢
is Develia S.A.

On 14 November 2022, the Issuer received information that on 10 November 2022 the President of th
Office of Competitiod &onsumer Protec(i€fOKik granted unconditional consent to concentration as part
of which a joint business in the form of a |
would be set up by the Issuer and The Heart S.A.lAamoedifighe conditions precedent set out in a joint
venture coperation agreement was met, namely to carry out through a special purpose vehicle (:
established to this end, a project entailing the development of a real property supjuimgsysteah, inclu
property and tenant management IT platform and a mobile application for tenants based on an order p
the SPV.
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From the end of thst financial year there were no significant changes in contingent liabilities or contingent ass
the Group companies, except for contingent liabilities arising from property development, relating to contingel
the removal of trees, whosd amount increased from PLN 758,000 as a 31 December 2021 to PLN 882,000 &
30 September 2022.

In pursuance of the Sales and Purchase Agreements covering two real properties: Silesia Star in Katowice ¢
Of fice House in Wroakbtgawt he hPuCompaaerys fulkngadi s p
(Al ngadi 60) and Artigo sp-§gka z ograniczon¥earodpow
period (coveririgter aliavacant floor space), secured bysbipgtyovided by the Company (as the surety of LC
Corp I nvest XVII Sp. z o0.o0. Projekt 20 Sp. k. (Al
as the Sellers and debtors). In relation to the aforesaid suretyship, tilegDanapéey that:

(i) obligations and liabilities arising from the Final Agreements will be discharged by P20 and P21, and

(ii) obligations and liabilities of P20 and P21 relating to finish works to be done by tenants designated in
Agreementslihbe discharged by P20 and P21, and

(iii) obligations and liabilities of P20 and P21 arising from the rent guarantee agreements contemplatec
Preliminary Sales and Purchase Agreements will be discharged by P20 and P21, and

(iv) the Company willirdebts of P20 and P21 arising from obligations and liabilities of P20 and P21 under the
Agreements and rent guarantee agreements if the Sellers have ceased their operations, have gone into liqu
have been dissolved, which circumstanoesiascribed in the surety arrangements.

I n pursuance of the Sales and Purchase Agreement
Company has undertaken to the PurchaseraCererSpl a Sy
z o0.0.), to stand surety for the Seller, War sz a:
debtor. Under the said commitment the Company guaranteed, among other things, that:

() The Seller would perform the obligatiatischacge the liabilities of Warszawa Przyokopowa, acting as the
Seller, arising from agreements covering thensttgjeof the Transaction, and

(i) The Company would incur debts of WP arising from obligations and liabilities of WP lggl@nthe Final S
Purchase Agreement, if the Seller has ceased its operations, has gone into liquidation or has been dissolve
circumstances were described in the surety arrangements.

In pursuance of the sale and purchase agreement for the disposiiata.8&ownership right to developed
l and | ocated i n pWrrogpcogsaew,b uan dwhmigc hc ad | el thiSky Towe

bet ween an | ssuerds subsidiary, D e v entl Olienp Idvestmerd a w
Sp. z 0.0., with its registered office in Warsaw, as the purchaser, the Issuer granted corporate guarantee |
amount of EUR 2,438,481. 95, to be wused as secur

obligatins arising from the said agreement.

On 18 July 2022, Develia S.A. stood surety for K
bank guarantee given on instruction of the said company by mBank S.A. to the City dédigaiedite and
secure the good performance of a contract of 02 November 2020 for the completion of a road project relati
Katowice Ceglana project.

Apart from contingent liabilities representing security for bank loans, described in@iBtamdtiNotaRilgies
described above, as at 30 September 2022, the Group Companies do not have any other significant cc
liabilities.

As describediterm4.9 of this report.
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For management purposes, the @stinguishes three reporting operating segments:
1 rental services segment
1 property development activity segment
1 holding (other) activity segment

The tables presented below show data concehening
period of 9 months ended 30 Septemban@(PSeptember 2021 and concerning assets and liabilities as at 3
September 2022 and 31 December 2021.

. Propert .
Peg%dsc;fp?er:q%r;trggzn; ed Rental services de\;ilti%i)trgim nglt?ti%/(ict);/her) TOTAL
Operating activity
Sales revenue 42,527 277,63: 138 320,297
Revenue from sale of services 42,527 - 138 42,665
Revenue from sales of goods and products - 277,632 - 277,632
Cost of goods sold (21,996 (214,843 - (236,839
Pretax profit/(loss) on sales 20,531 62,78¢ 138 83,45¢
Gain/(loss) on disposal ofinancial fixed assets - - - -
Profit /(loss) on investment property 42,34E - - 42,345
WriteDowns of Inventory - - - -
Selling and distribution cost (703) (15,966 - (16,669
General and administrative expense (7,799 (29,916 (152) (37,867
Other operating income 1,900 7,000 164 9,064
Other Operating Expenses (569) (3,659 (1,437 (5,665
Operating profit/(loss) 55,70E 20,248 (1,287, 74,66€
Financial Income 888 3,962 1,621 6,471
Financial Expenses (28,109 (135) (1,919 (30,163
equSitr;ar;eeltr;] (E)(;oflts (losses) of entities disclosed usil ) (615) ) (615)
Pretax profit/(loss) 28,484 23,46C (1,585 50,35¢
Income tax (tax expense) (4,844 4,682 314 152
Net profit/(loss) 23,64C 28,142 (1,271, 50,511

Other comprehensive income subject to reclassification to financial result in subsequent reporting periods
Cash flow hedges 1,260 - - 1,260
Income tax relating to other components of

comprehensive income (162) i i (162)
Othercomprehensive income (net) 1,098 - - 1,098
Comprehensive income 24,73¢€ 28,142 (1,271 51,60¢

. Property .

Period of 9 months ended Rental services  development HoIdm_g _(other) TOTAL
30 September 2021 -~ activity
activity
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Operating activity
Sales revenue 64,00€
Revenue from sale of services 64,007

Revenue from sales of goods and products 1

Cost of goods sold (31,952
Pretax profit/(loss) on sales 32,05€
Gain/(loss) on disposal ofinancial fixed assets -
Profit /(loss) on investment property (6,095
WriteDowns of Inventory -
Selling and distribution cost (748)
General and administrative expense (7,352
Other operating income 2,321
Other Operating Expenses (1,297,
Operating profit/(loss) 18,88t
Financial Income 141
Financial Expenses (12,983
Share in profits (losses) of entities disclosed usil )
equity method
Pretax profit/(loss) 6,043
Income tax (tax expense) (224)
Net profit/(loss) 5,819

532,281
8
532,27¢
(401,016
131,271

(13,121
(19,427
2,103
(1,390
99,43€
18
(113)

99,341
(19,219
80,122

(126)
49
(547)
(587)
428
(1,306

®3)

(1,468
299
(1,169

Other comprehensive income subject to reclassification to financial reglitdquent reporting periods

Cash flow hedges 477
Income tax re_Iating to other components of (91)
comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income (net) 386
Comprehensive income 6,205

As at 30 September 2022 Rental services

Assets and liabilities

Total assets, including: 770,87
NonCurrent Receivables 1,678
Investments in joint ventures valued by equity me -
Investment property 487,90
Inventory 985
Derivatives assets 909
Shorterm securities -
Other financial assets -
Cash and cash equivalents 61,667
Noncurrent assets classified as held for sale 195,13(

Total liabilities, including: 347,25%
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80,122

Property
development
activity

2,305,75:

85,50z

1,947,84.

94,097
140,15¢

22,184

1,592,99:

(1,169

Holding (other)
activity

142,137
1,049

25,24C
26,01C
61,80z

21,58¢

596,33
64,052
532,28(
(432,968
163,361

(6,095
(13,869
(26,905

4,473

(3,234

117,73¢
587
(14,402

®)

103,91¢
(19,144
84,772

477
(91)

386
85,15¢

TOTAL

3,218,76:
2,727

85,502

487,90(
1,948,82!
909
25,24C
120,107
263,62¢

217,31«

1,961,83.
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Liabilities on account of loans and bonds
Liabilities Arising from Derivatives

Accrued expenses and deferred income

As at 31 December 2021

Assets and liabilities
Total assets, including:
NonCurrent Receivables

Investments in joint ventures valued by equity me

Investment property
Inventory

Derivatives assets
Shorterm securities

Other financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Noncurrent assets classified as held for sale

Total liabilities, including:

Liabilities on account of loans, bonds and financi:
instruments

Liabilities Arising from Derivatives

Accrued expenses and deferred income

243,86¢ 369,692
1,481 964,65
Property
Rental services  development
activity
1,056,88!t 1,926,99i
2,576 -
- 55,122
451,66( -
988 1,568,64-
49 -
- 49,174
25,362 220,83¢
546,507 22,02:
531,11 1,233,18:
432,61¢ 355,62¢
736 -
1,576 561,542
DEVELIA
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1,177

7,123

Holding (other)
activity

265,95¢

27,052
69,365
86,55¢€

85,14C

60,364

14,982

614,73:

973,251

TOTAL

3,249,84(
2,576

55,122

451,66(
1,569,63.
49
27,052
118,53¢
332,75¢

568,53(
1,849,43:
848,60¢
736

578,10(
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If not stated otherwise, the below figures are presented in PLN '000.

Assets

ONo o »wNE DO A®NE P

Fixed assets

Intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment
Noncurrent loans and receivables
Noncurrent investments
Noncurrent prepayments
Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Inventory

Trade and other receivables
Income tax receivables

Shorterm securities
Othefinancial assets

Cash and other cash assets
Current prepayments

Noncurrent assets classified as held for sale

Total assets

Equity andiabilities

O A WNREOMONETOOOS®ONRE P

Equity

Share capital

Calleeup share capital not paid
Supplementary capital

Other reserve funds

Other capitals

Retained profit/(Loss carried forward)
Longterm liabilities

Noncurrent financial liabilities
Noncurrent lease liabilities
Provisions

Deferred tax liability

Shortterm liabilities

Current financial liabilities
Current lease liabilities

Current trade and other payables
Income tax payables

Provisions

Accruals and deferred income

Total equity and liabilities

DEVELIA
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Note

3.11
3.12

3.17

3.13
3.14

3.15
3.15
3.16

3.27
3.27.6

3.28

3.17

3.27
3.27.6
3.27.7

3.28

30 September
2022

970,91¢
430
6,394
78,49t
873,50¢
418
11,671
1,613,40.
1,435,18!
8,217
725
25,24C
88,39¢
52,607
3,034

2,584,31¢

1,096,48-
447 ,55¢
457,972

16,36¢
12,61¢€
161,96¢
586,43¢
583,671
2,316
445
901,39¢
156,991
42,262
116,98¢
243
584,91¢
2,584,31t

QR for 3Q 2022

31 December
2021

988,321
315
6,006
95,83¢
879,23t
465
6,463
1,384,95
1,116,53!
75,072
27,052
89,96C
73,792
2,550

2,373,27!

1,129,60!
447,55¢
417,69¢
100,20¢

6,303
157,84:
603,17¢
599,954

2,776

445
640,49¢
151,35¢
40,642
177,342
671

107
270,371
2,373 27i
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3 Quarters of 3 Quarters of

e
P cumulatively P cumulatively
Note from from from from
en2e  ovovz022  OVOTZOZL - 01/01/2021
‘ to 30/09/202: to 30/09/2021
Operating income
Revenue from sale of services, products and gooi 3.34.1 26,937 113,51¢ 171,73( 337,23¢
Revenue from interest and discounts 947 1,315 931 4,489
Revenue from dividend 5,893 209,73¢ - 90,86¢
Other financial income 136 310 5,310 824
Other operating income 542 1,617 168 745
Total operating income 34,45¢5 326,49t 178,13¢ 434,16¢
Operating expenses
Operating expenses, cost of sold products and gc  3.34.2 (34,031 (140,961 (151,729 (299,705
Costs of interest and discounts (2,870 (8,326 (1,804 (5,372
Other financial expenses 5,336 (19,018 (703) (1,325
Other operating expenses (995) (1,430 (340) (456)
Total operating expenses (32,560 (169,735 (154,576 (306,858
Pretax profit/(loss) 1,895 156,76( 23,562 127,30¢
Income tax (tax expense) 1,386 5,208 (3,709 (7,167,
Net profit/(loss) 3,281 161,96¢ 19,854 120,141
Other comprehensive income subject to reclassificati
profit(loss) in subsequent reporting periods
Other components of comprehensive income - - - -
Income tax relating to other components of compr ) i i i
income
Othercomprehensive income (net) - - - -
Comprehensive income 3,281 161,96¢ 19,854 120,141
DEVELIA
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3 Quarters of 3 Quarters of
Q32022 2022 Q32021 2021

period period cumulatively

~ cumulatively .
from 01071202 0y 01101720z TOMOLOTI202% o 011017202

10 30/0912022 "4, 30/09/2022 10 3070912021 4 30/09/2021

Net profit/ (loss) (PLNOBOO 3,281 161,96¢ 19,854 120,141

Average weighted number of ordinary shares (pcs) 447,558,31 447,558,31 447,558,31 447,558,31

Netprofit/(loss) per share (in Phabic 0.01 0.36 0.05 0.27

Net profit/(loss) per share (in-elied 0.01 0.36 0.05 0.27
DEVELIA
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As at 01 January 2022

Net profit/(loss) for the period of 9 months
ended 30 September 2022

Other comprehensive income for the period of 9 month
ended 30 September 2022

Other comprehensive income for the period of 9 month
ended 30 September 2022

Transfer to reserve furgigpplementary capital
Payment of dividend

Valuation of incentive scheme
As at 30 September 2022

As at 01 January 2021

Net profit/(loss) for the period of 9 months
ended 30 September 2021

Other comprehensive income for the period of 9 month
ended 30 September 2021

Other comprehensive income for the period of 9 month
ended 3Geptember 2021

Transfer to reserve funds / supplementary capital
Payment of dividend
As at 30 September 2021

CONSOLIDATED QUARTERLY REPORT

Share capital

447,55¢

447,55¢

Share capital

447,55¢

447,55¢

Calledup share
capital not pai

Calledup share

Supplementary
capital

417,69¢

40,277

457,97¢

Supplementary

capital not paid capital
- 353,524
- 64,172
- 417,69¢
DEVELIA
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Other reserve
funds

100,20t

(83,836

16,36¢

Other reserve
funds

100,20¢

100,20¢

QR for 3Q 2022
Retained
Other capitals profit/(Loss

6,303

6,313
12,61¢€

Other capitals

1,994

1,994

carried forward)

157,84:

161,96¢

161,96¢
(40,277
(117,565

161,96¢

Retained
profit/(Loss
carried forward)
140,25i

120,141

120,141

(64,172
(76,085
120,141

Total

1,129,60!

161,96¢

161,96¢

(201,401
6,313
1,096,48

Total

1,043,53i

120,141

120,141

(76,085
1,087,59.
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QR for 3Q 2022

Note Share capital Calledup share Supplementary Other reserve Other capitals  Retained profit/(Los: Total
capital not paid capital funds carried forward)

As at 01 January 2021 447 55¢ 353,52¢ 100,20¢ 1,994 140,257 1,043,53!
Netprofit for 2021 - - - - 157,84: 157,84:
Other comprehensive income for 2021 - - - - - -
Total comprehensive income for 2021 - - - - 157,84: 157,84:
Profit allocated to supplementary capit

reserve funds - 64,172 - - (64,172 -
Payment of dividend - - - - (76,085 (76,085
Valuation of incentive scheme - - - 4,309 - 4,309
As at 31 December 2021 447 ,55¢ 417,69¢ 100,20¢ 6,303 157,84: 1,129,60!
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Cash flowdrom operating activities

Pretax profit/(loss)

Total adjustments

Change in tangible assets and intangible assets
Change in the balance of provisions

Change imventory

Change in receivables

Change in liabilities, except for loans and borrowings

Change in prepayments and accruals

Change in financial liabilities

Change in financial assets

Change in financial assets resulting from shares

. Income tax
. Other adjustments
. Net cash flow from operating activities (I+I)

Cash flow from financing activities

Cash inflows

Issue of debt securities

Bank and ndrank loans

Outflows

Redemption of debturities

Repayment of bank andbaork loans
Payment of liabilities arising from finance lease
Interest

Dividends and payments to shareholders
Net cash flows from financing activities (I+11)
Total net cash flow (A.llI+ B.III)
Balancesheet change in cash, including:
Cash at the beginning of period

Cash at the end of period (F+D)

- restricted cash

DEVELIA
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Period of 9 months
ended
30 September 202

156,76(
80,332
(502)
136
(318,650
66,855
(60,356
314,00¢
44,24€
62,342
5,724
(1,396
(32,165
237,09z

75,145
75,14E
(333,423
(68,496
(41,230
(1,792
(20,505
(201,401
(258,278
(21,185
(21,185
73,792
52,607
20

QR for 3Q 2022

Period of 9 months
ended
30 September 202

127,30¢
(89,651
833
250
(84,387
(39,797
32,20¢
(31,817
16,852
4,902
7,709
133
3,462
37,657

195,38¢
150,00(
45,384
(193,232
(100,000
(5,384
(1,796
(9,967
(76,085
2,152
39,80¢
39,80¢
71,80€
111,617
20
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Develia S.A. (the Al ssuer o, t he @A Co mtha Moyadal Deddo r me
dated 3 March200eh e Company' s registered office is 4situat
The Company has been entered into the register of entrepreneurs of the National Court Register maintaine
DisticCourt fBabMWozgawin Wrocgaw, 4th Commerci al Di
No. 0000253077.

As at 30 September 2022, the shares of Develia S.A. are in public trading.

The Company has been assigned statistical identifitaiofREGON): 020246398, tax identification number
(NIP): 8992562750.

The Company has been established for an indefinite time. The Company's primary activity includes:

PKD 74.15.Z Activities of financial holding companies

PKD 41.10.Z Completiamo$truction projects related to putting up buildings

PKD 68.10.Z Buying and selling of own real estate

PKD 41.20.Z Construction works related to the completion of resideasiaentidinauildings

= =4 —a A

As at the date hereof, there is no parenkinmgleftBevelia S.A.

Interim Condensed Financial Statements of Develia S.A. cover the period of 9 months ended 30 September :
detailed description of the component parts of the financial statement#ésridduded in

These interim condensed financial statements of Develia S.A. comprise:

- Statement of Financial Position as at 30 September 2022 and comparable financial data as at 31 Deceml

- Statement of Comprehensive Income for the tkemseofi2022, i.e. for the period of 9 months, cumulatively
from 01 January 2022 to 30 September 2022, as well as comparable data for a corresponding perioc
previous year, i.e. from 01 January 2021 to 30 September 2021;

- Statement of Cash Flows éothitee quarters of 2022, i.e. for the period of 9 months, cumulatively from
January 2022 to 30 September 2022, as well as comparable data for a corresponding period of the previc
i.e. from 01 January 2021 to 30 September 2021;

- Statement of Clgges in Equity as at 30 September 2022 and comparable data as at 30 September 2021 a
at 31 December 2021;

- Notes to the financial statements.

Notes to financial statements and other information defined in Section 66 of the Regulatiorfrioiatiee Minister o
dated 29 March 2018 on Current and Periodic Information Published by Issuers of Securities and on Conc
Regarding Information Required by Law-MérNoer State as Equivalent, representing an element of this
Consolidated Quarterly Rémo@3 2022, are includsgdtior.

The enclosed condensed financial statements of the Develia S.A. were prepared in accordance with the Inte
Financi al Reporting Standards (Al FRS0) , in parti
statements) and IFRS atbpy the EU.

As at the date of the approval of these financial statements for publication, on account of the ongoing pr
introducing IFRS in the EU and the business activity conducted by the Group, the International Financial F
Standard#y terms of accounting principles adopted by the Group, vary from IFRS already approved by the EU

DEVELIA
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| FRS comprise standards and interpretations acce
the International Financial Reportipgrineet at i ons Commi ttee (Al FRI C0) .

The interim condensed financial statements of Develia S.A. do not contain all information and disclosures re
the annual separate financial statements and they must be read together with the annuahtnahcial stater
Develi&®.A. for the year ended 31 December 2021.

The I nterim Condensed Financi al Statements are p
tables and descriptions, i f not i ndi cated ot her wi

The intem condensed financial statements of ®évelere prepared on the going concern assumption, i.e. the
continuation of the Companyds business activity
statements, there wereno ciraurostas i dent i fi ed i mplying any threat:

The information on the accounting principles adopted by the Issuer was presented in the annual financial stat
Develi&.A. for the year ended 31 December Blighedwon 30 March 2022.

Information about new standards and interpretations is included in item 3.5.

These interim condensed financial statements &.Bewelia approved by the ManagemerfoBpabtication
on 15 November 2022.

The Company's Management Board applied their best knowledge regarding not only the standards and inter;
used, but also the methods and principisation of individual items of the enclosed financial statements.
Preparing the financial statements in accordance with IFRS required the Company's Management Board to m
assessments and assumptions, which are reflected in these statémeesnliss Awyavary from these estimates.

The financial data for the three quarters of 2027

In the process of applying the accounting principles (policies) tepthafisduesreinbelow, the professional
judgement of the management was, apart from the accounting estimates, of the greatest importance.

The Company classifies lease according to IFRS 16.

The basic assumptions concerning the future have been discussed below as well as other key reasons fc
occurring at the end of the reporting period and entailing a significant risk of considerable adjustment of the
value of assets and litgds in the following reporting period.

The Company recognises a deferred tax asset based on the assumption that a tax profit enabling its utilisatit
be obtained in the future. Worse tax results obtained in the fueetw@fielca that this assumption might
become groundless. Deferred income tax is presented in Note 3.17.

At the end of each reporting period, the Management Board verifies if there iDaingvaldreanypairment
of the shares in subsidiary undertakings.

DEVELIA
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If the verification reveals the existence of such impairment, the Management Board writes down these asse
recoverable value. The recoverable value of an asset can belefintda dsgher one of the two values: fair
value less costs to sell or value in use.

The value in use is estimated with the DCF method or with the hybrid model: net assets and discounted
(discounted dividends). The DCF method is basedriaditash flows generated by the subsidiary undertakings
within the approved investment schedules and proceeds from the sale of flats, taking into consideration the :
of 1 square metre of usable floor space in accordance with the csiteationaakel prices. The discount rate
takes account of the weighted average cost of external and own capital (WACC).

The recoverable value of shares and the amount ofdbeinswitere estimated as at 30 September 2022 and
may be subject to a chadgpending on the fluctuations of the market prices of land, sale prices of fla
constructions costs, project completion schedules and discount rate calculations in the future.

The actual results may vary from these estimates, which were daécglataadsrof the data available as at the
reporting date. It is also related to the uncertainty regarding the proper estimation of the market conditior
following years. Consequently, the amountdawmgtenay change in the following accperitdg. Write

downs of shares are presented in Note 3.8.

The Management Board conducts an analysis at the end of every reporting period aimed at checking
borrowings granted fit thetassintenance model with a view to achieving contractual cash flows. Depending or
result of SPPI test, borrowings are classified either as financial assets measured at amortised cost or financ
measured at fair value through profit or loss.

The table below presents estimates as at 30 September 2022 and as at 31 December 2021.

30 September 31 December

2022 2021
Deferred tax asset 11,671 6,463
Deferred tax liability - -
Writedowns of shares and stocks 150,85¢ 137,36t

The regulations concerning the tax on goods and services, corporate tax and burdens associated with social
are subject to frequent changes. These frequent changes make no appropriate reference points, incc
interpretations and few established precedents that might be applicable. The binding regulations also
uncertainties, resulting in different opinions regarding the legal interpretation of tax regulations, both amot
authorities and betweellip authorities and companies.

Tax settlements and other areas of activity (for example customs and foreign currency issues) may be si
inspection by bodies authorised to impose high penalties and fines, and any additional taikdiatifides arising
inspection must be paid together with high interest. Having considered these conditions, the tax risk in F
greater than in countries with a more mature tax system.

Consequently, amounts presented and disclosed in financial stathiswegdsimine future as a result of a final
decision of a tax audit authority.

On 15 July 2016, changes were made to the Tax Ordinance Act in order to take account of the provisior
General Artivoidance Rule (GAAR). GAAR is to prevent theanckase of artificial legal structures created in
order to avoid the payment of tax in Poland. GAAR defines the avoidance of taxation as an action made ab
order to achieve a tax advantage, contnagr given circumstaricesthe object @mpurpose of the provisions

of the tax actn accordance with GAAR, such an action does not result in the tax advantage, if the operatio
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artificial. Any occurrence of (i) unjustified separation of operations, (ii) involvement of intdespitiatiyeentitie
lack of economic justification, (iii) elements that null or compensate each other and (iv) other actions having
effect to the previously mentioned, may be treated as a premise of artificial operations subject to GAA
regulaticn will require a much greater degree of professional judgement in assessing the tax consequen
individual transactions.

The GAAR clause should be applied to transactions made after its entry into force and transactions that
carried out befdhe entry into force of the GAAR clause, but for which benefits were or are still being gained af
date of entry of this clause into force. The implementation of these provisions will enable Polish tax audit aut
guestion the legal arramgets and agreements carried out by taxable persons, such as the restructuring
reorganisation of a group.

The Company recognises and measures the assets or liabilities in respect of current and deferred incomnr
compliance with the requiremeltS df2, Income Tax on the basis of the profit (tax loss), tax base, unrelieved
losses, unused tax exemptions and tax rates, taking into account the uncertainty associated with tax settlemel

Theaccounting principles (policies) applied to the preparation of these financial statements are consistent w
adopted to draw up the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021, save for the following ¢
The below changes tdaRRve been applied to these financial statements as of the date of their entry into force:

T Amendments to | AS 16 0 PProceedsrBefgre Intdhded Wse appraved byEtioelEU p
on 28 June 20&dpplicable to annual periods beginniraften bdanuary 2p22

f Amendments to | AS 37 OProvisi ons, i Odbeoud Contrgiesnt L i
Cost of Fulfilling a Contract, approved by the EU on 28 June 2021 (applicable to annual periods beginni
after 1 January2Z);

T Amendments to | FRS 3 AneBdmeritsitoeReferentee tmthé Goaceptual Rrangework
including amendments to IFRS 3 approved in the EU on 28 June 2021 (applicable to annual periods begi
or after 1 January 2022);

1 Amendmentstomicel | aneous standards 0200 o gnekdengns t o
made as part of the IFRS Annual Improvement Process (IFRS 1, IFRS 9, IFRS 16 and IAS 41) are d
mainly to deal with qgonformities and ensure the consistency dbtgfivapproved by the EU on 28 June
2021(amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9 and IAS 41 are applicable to annual periods beginning on or after 1
2022. Amendments to IFRS 16 concern only an illustrative example, hence no entry into for¢e date has be

The adoption of the standards and amendments to existing standards, as mentioned above, did not e;
considerable impact on the financial statements.

On the approval of these financial statements, the following amendments to existing standards were iSsue
IFRIC and approved for application within the EU, neverthidllessethigyorforce on a later date:

f Amendments to | FDBekrrefl Zax relatedcto Assets and kidgbilities arising from a Single
Transaction (applicable to annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2023);

T I FRS 17 oI ns uwitlafartbee am@raments @ FRS 1& published by the IASB on 25 June 202
approved in the EU on 19 November 2021 (applicable to annual periods beginning on or after 01 January

f Amendments to | AS 1 0Pr e s @isdosutefcdeountng PoliciesnAppliedi a |
approved on 02 March 2022 (applicable to annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2023);
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 Amendmentstb AS 8 OAccounting Policies, C hi Defigitorsof i n A
accounting estimates appriovéee EU on 02 March 2022 (applicable to annual periods beginning on or after
January 2023);

Currently, IFRS in the form approved by the EU do not differ significantly from regulations issued by the Inte
Financi al Reporting I nterpretations Committee (0
standardwhich as at the date of the publication of these statements were not approved for application within

(the below entry into force dates relate to the full version of standards):

T Amendments to | AS 1 0Pr ed ElassifediniobLiabilives asEurnerd ar dlona |
current (applicable to annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2023);

1 Amendmentstb FRS 17 01 n s UIFRSME and IERSM tappléed forghé firstdmpmaratives
(applicable to annual periodsridegion or after 01 January 2023).

T | FRS 14 O0Regul at (applcable ¢éofarual pariods Aegionig ontorsafier 1 Jariuary 2016)
the European Commission decided not to initiate the process of approving this temporary standard for af
within the EU before the release of the final version of IFRS 14;

T Amendments to | FRS 10, 0Consolidated Financi al
Joi nt Meald ar €Camtsiblution of Assets between an Investor and iterAdsintiatenture and
subsequent amendments (the date of entry into force of the amendments was postponed until research
the equity method have been completed).

Early application is allowed, including also for the financial statementetieen baypeoved for publication on
or after the date of release of amendment.

The Company is in the process of verification of the impact -ofi¢né@ie/standards on its financial situation,
performance and the scope of information presesmtethlrsfatements.

According to the Comeptianed new staadards anthamendmentd th existingbstandards
would not have had major impact on the financial statements if they had been applied by the Company at the
sheet date.

Apart from regulations approved by the EU, there is also hedge accounting for a portfolio of assets and liab
principles of which have not been approved for application within the EU yet.

According to the ¢ ompledyydccsuntng foriapatiole ef assetstordinaacaldidbilities
under | AS 39, AFi nanci al Il nstrument s Recognitio
financial statements, if the standard in question had been applioatdri@saaipthe balasiteet date..

The Company is in the process of verification of the impact of thenmthéomdbwtandards on its financial
situation, performance and the scope of information presented in financial statements.

Accordingtboh e Company6s -aentiornednaew standardd amcamandneenteto existing standards
would not have had major impact on the financial statements if they had been applied by the Company at the
sheet date.

The Companyébés operations are not seasonal by nat
property development projects, which is particularly noticeable in the recognition of the proceeds from the
resdential and retail premises. In accordance with IFRS 15, such proceeds can only be recognised when pra
risks and benefits related to given premises have been transferred to the client and the revenue can be mea:
reliable manner. Cansently, the sales results in a given period depend on the value of the premises transferr
the clients in accordance with the above definition.
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During the period of 9 months ended 30 September 2022 there sdemensahiriteentory to the net realisable
value.

As regards wrlewns on financial assets, property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, amounts receivak
other assets in the period of 9 months ended 30 September 2022, theri@caetehargigs compared with the
previous year, except for revaluatietomnite of shares which changed as presented in the below table:

Period of 9

months
ended Year ended 31
30 September December 2021

2022

At the beginning of the reportingipd (137,365 (141,350
Increase (35,822 (14,522
Used 3,322 -
Decrease 19,00€ 18,507
At the end of the reporting period (150,859 (137,365

During the period of 9 months ended 30 September 2022, the Company purchased property, plant and e
totalling PLN 752,000 (in the year ended 31 December 2021, it was: PLN 806,000).

In the period of 9 months ended 30 September 2022, the Coadbimny anéase agreement for 19 passenger
cars. The value of recogniseebfigbe assets was PLN 314,000.

In the period of 9 months ended 30 September 2022 and in the period of 9 months ended 30 September
Company did not make any sign#fatamegarding property, plant and equipment items.

As at 30 September 2022, there were no significant liabilities on account of the purchase of property,
equipment.

As at 30 September 2022 and 31 December 2021, no item of tangible exbsatcollasenal, was subject to
encumbrance or was mortgaged.

As at 30 September 2022, there were no significant liabilities on account ofothgrqpediyaggant or
equipment.

DEVELIA

WCZESNIEJ LC CORP


















































































































